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Abgut the Kational Auvdit Office
Mandate

The statutory mandate ‘and responsibilities of the Controller and Auditor-General are provided
for under Article 143 of the Constitution of the United Republit of Tanzania of 1977 and in
Section 10 (1) of the Public Audit Act, Cap: 418,
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INDEPENDENT REPORT OF THE CONTROLLER AND ALIDITOR GENERAL

Executive Director,
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital,
P.O. Box 11085,

Dodoma, Tanzania.

REPORT OM THE AUDIT OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Unqualified Opinion

| hava audited the financial statements of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement of financial performance, the
statement of changes in net assets, the cash flow statement, and the statement of comparison
of budget aad actual amounts for the year then ended, as well s the notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accolnting policies.

in'my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects,
the financial pesition of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital as at 30 June 2074, and fts financial
performance and its cash flows for the yearthen ended in accordance with Internabional Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) Accrual basis of accounting and the manner réquired by
the Public Finance Act, Cap- 343

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (I5541s5). My responsibilities under those starujards are further described in the
section betow entitled “Responsibitities of the Controller and Auditor General for the Audit of
the Financial Statements”. |-am independent of Benjamin Mkapa Hespital in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESEA Code) together with the National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA)
Code of Ethics, and | have fulfilled my other ethical respunsiblfmes in accordance with these

requirements.

| beligve that thie audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropeiate to provide a basls
for my opiniom.

Key Audit Matters

E'E;E_'_.r audit matters are those matters that, n my professional judgment, were of mast
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. | have determined
that there are no key audit matters to.communicate fn my report.

Other Information
Management is responstble for the other information. The other infarmation comprises the

Direi:tu__r-'s Report, statement of rhanagemént responsibility, and Declaration by the Head of

|E:'.¢Ltrul ler and Auditor Erfnerai ARG BMH F2023/24




Finance but does not incliude the financial statements and my audit report theregn, which |
obteined prior-to the date of this auditor’s report.

My opinign on the ﬂnandal_fstatemmts d_aer. not cover the aother information, and | do not
Express any form of assurance gonclusicn thereon.

In cormection with my awdit of the financial statements, my responsibitity s to read the other
information and, in doing 6, contider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the awdit; or otherwise appears Lo
be materially misstated.

if, based on the wark | hava performed on the othar infarmation that | obtatned baefore the
date of this audit report, | conclude that there is 3 material misstatement of this other
information, | am reguired to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with sovernance for the Financial
Statements

Ménafgemen: is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements
in accardance with IPSAS and for such internal controf as marmgamem determings is necessany
to enable the preparation of financial: statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the entity's
ability to continue as a guing concern, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to geing
concern-and using the going cunceh'l basis of ac:uurrt:ng unless management either inténds to
liguidate the entity or to cease operations or has no realistic alternativia but to do so.

Those chargad with sovernance are: responsible for overseeing the entity's financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of the Controller and Auditer General for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 2s.a
whole are free from materiatl misstatement, whether dug to fraud or errorand to issue an audit
report that includes my opinien. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SSAls will always detect a material
missiatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud orerror and are:considered
material if, individually or in the aggrogate, they could reascnably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of nsers taken on the biasis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1PSASS, | exercise professional. judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. | alse:

* Identify and assess the risks aof material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
dise to'fraud of ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and

|Contreller and Auditor General ARICGHBMH /1023/24
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‘obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for my opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than fer
ane resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusian, forgery, intentional omissions,
misfepresentations, or the override of internal control;

«  Obtain an understanding of internal cantrol relevant to the audit to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not expressing  an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's intérmal control;

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of acctounting policies used and the ressonableness of
accaunting estimates and related disclosures made by management:

» Conclude on the appropriateness of mianagement's wse of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty
e:'-'r_i_ﬂs related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability
to continve as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am
required to draw -attention in my audit report to the related disclosures in tha financial
statements or, if sich disclosures are inadequate, to madify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of my audit report. However,
future-events or conditions. may cause the entity te cease tocontinue as a going concern;
and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content &f the financial statements,
including the diselosures, and whisther the financial statements represent the underlying,
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

| communicate: with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope-and Himtng of the audit and significant. audit findings, including any significant
deficiancies in intémal control that [ identify during my audit.

| ‘also provide those charged with govermance with a statement that | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonabily be thowsght ta bearon my independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are, therefore, key audit matters: | describe these matters inmy audit report unbess
taw or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the: matter-or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, | determine that a matter-should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing 50 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest of such communication.

In-‘addition, Section 10 (Z) of the Public Audit Act, Cap. 418 requires me to satisfy myzelf that
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with thecapprogriate accounting standards.

Controller and Auditor General ARICG//BMH /2023/24
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Further; Section 48(3) of the Public Procurement Act, Cap. 410 réquires me to-state in Iy
annual audit report whether ar not the audited entity has complied with the procedures
prescribed in the Procurement Act and 1ts Regulations.

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION
Compliance with the Public Procurement Laws

Subject matter: Compliance audit on procurement of works, goods, and services
| performed a compliance audit en the precurement of works, goods, and services in the
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital for the financial year 2023/24 as par the Public Procurement: laws.

Conciusion

Based on the awdit work performed, | state that except for the matters described below, the
procurement - of -goods works; and services of Benjamin Mhapa Hospital s generally in
compliance with the requirements of the Public Procurement laws.

{i Irregularities noted on procurement of medicines for bone marrow transplant -
TZ5115,980,000
My review of procurement management revealed that, on 10 Hovernber 2023, the hospital
entered contract number T1370000P02400136 for the supply of bone marrow transplants
worth TZS 115,980,000. Hawever, | noted that the Local Purchase Order (LPO) was issued
and signed by the accounting officer before the supplier accepted the contract on 15
Wovember 2023, violating Regulation 233(1) of PPR 1!313 | further noted the LPO was only
signed by the accounting officer, not the supplier, which implies na bﬂr!d'ing_ agreement
between the-hospital and thie Supplier, contrary to Section 60{7) of the Public Procurement
Act 2011, which mandates a formal contract. | also reveated that, without justification,
the medicires were delivered 22 days late on 22 January 2024, instead of the expected
datepi 31 [m_-cemt:gr 1023,

(i)} Procurement made without using LPO and competitive Quatation TZS 41,425,000
Regulations 163 and 164 of the Public Procurement Regulation 2013 require procurement
entities 1o obtain price quotations from at least three suppliers when making. purchases
through National Shopping. However, | noted that goods and services worth TZS 41,425,000
were procured directly from a single-supplier without obtaining quotations from at least
three suppliers, bypassing the competitive bidding process.

(i) Micro value procurement not reported to the Tender Board and PPRA - TZ5 153,944,318
I noted that Benjamin Mkapa Hospital Management paid various suppliers and sarvice
providers TZS 153,944 318 for micro-value procurement of office consumables, medical
suppties. and food and refreshments. Howeyer, these payments:were not reported to the
Tender Board and PPRA, contrary te Reg, 166 (7} & {B) of the Public Procurement
Repulations, 2013.

Controller and Auditor General AR/CG//BMH /2023124




Compliance with the Budset Act and cther Budget Guidelines
Subject matter: Budeget formulation and execution

| performed a compliance avdit on budget formulation and éxecution in Benjamin Mkapa
Haspital for the financial year 2023424 as per the Budget Act and other Budget Guidelines,

Conelusion

Bazed an the audit work performed, | state that the Budget formulation and execution of
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital 15 generally in compliance with the requirements of the Budget Act
and other Budeet Guidelines,

‘__.f———"__' ety
M s
Charles E. Kichere
Contreller and Auditor General,

Dodoma, United Republic of Tanzania.

March 2025
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THE LINITED REPLBLIC OF TANZAHIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJAMIF MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

2.0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE
2024

Introduction

Or behalf of the Board of Trustees of The Benjamin Mkapa Hospital (BMHL, 9t 15 my
pleasure to present the Financial Statements fer the financial vear:2023/2024, which
provides the results of BMH operations and its state of affairs. BMH prepared this
report in compliance with TFRS 1 - The report by those charged with governance
issued by NBAA and became Effective on 1 Jandary 2021, This is the fourth tme since
SMH started grepaning 1ts financial statements as a reporting entity,

Mature of Dperations.

The Benjamin Mkapa Hospital (BMH) is a Governmient Hospital under the Ministry of
Health. It was registered under subsidiary legislation Ho. 40 of 4 Qcteber 2015 which
was published on the same date through Government Motice numBer 453, The Hospital
was: established to provide specialized and super-specialized medical services. and
undertake research and training activities. It started its operations effectively on 15-
Cctober 2015, In the performance of its functions, the Hospital may enter into
contracts of Memorandum of Understanding with other Hospitals, colleges, or any
other Institution of heaith sciences for organizing training activities and integrating
such Hospitals, and colleges with clinical worl,

BMH is goversed by the Board of Trustees established under subsidiary leeislation No.
40 of te October 2315 which was published on the same date throltgh Government
Motice number 453, The Board s responsible for overseeing the management of
business and affairs of the Hospital. The Hospital as a health institute 15 working under
the Mimistry of Health. However, as a Public Corporation and is also OVETSREN by the

Treasury Registrar
3.0  Objectivaes

In the financial year 2023/24 the following strategic chjectives were planned to be
dchieved:-

31 Serviceimproved and HIV/AIDS infections reduced.

32 Mational Anti-Corruption implementation strategy enhanced and sustained.

3.3 Quality health services delivered and sustained.

3.4 Health infrastructure with high-tech equipment enhanced and sustalned.

3.5 Access to guality and appropriate quantity, disgnostic, preventive, and
corative serdces enhanced. '

Controller and Auditor General AR/CGIBMH /202 &



Controller and Auditor General

THE UNITED REPLBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMR)

3.6 Integration of ICT and clinical innovation in health services improved.

£l 3 Pubtic relations and communication management enhanced.

3.8 Fimancial and human resources management streéngthened.

34 Legal, procurement, and supplies management improved.

310  Health promotion, traiming, research, and outraach programs enhanced.

During the year, the Board played a crucial rofe in ensuring the Hospital successfully
implemented its strategic Plan 1o achieve its vision. The Hospital has demonstrated
nutable growth in its capacity to provide specialized and super-specialized miedical
services. Notably, eight childrenreceived bone marrow transplants this year, bringing
the total to twelve since the service was inaugurated. This advancement has had a
positive impact on the community.

Additionally, the ‘cosstruction of the radiotherapy and muclear medicine building is

progressing wetl, with an expected completion date by the end of 2025. This projeck is

pofsed to revolutionfze cancer ‘management by facilitating timely diagnosis and

treatmient, uitimately helping to reduce mortality rates.

The performance of BMH for the yesr ended 30 June 2024 was commendable, a
testament to various ::nntr:hmng factors, including the unwavering support from the
Government of T&n:ania, the Ministry of Health, and other key stakeholders.

The Board extends its heartfelt appreciation to Her Excellency, Hon. Samia Sulubu
Hassan, the President of the United Republic of Tanzania, for her exemplary
\éadership and strategic initiatives to revive the national economy. Special thanks also
go ko Homn. JEﬁiEEa Joakim Mhagama (MF), Minister of Health, for her relentless efforts
in énhancing: the health sector and bolstering its contribution to the national economy.

I would also tike to express my gratitude to the BMH Board of Trustees, Maragement,
and employess for their unwavering commitment and dedication to providing quality
health services. Their efforts are irstrumental in réatizing a better Tamzania, in iine
with the Hospital's slogan, "Kuveo Vieta wwa Meenjwa/Miejo, Uwgjibikeji na
Kujituma™ (Empathy, Accountability, and Bedication).

- o -
NSedde 19022025
Okt. Seif A.Shekalaghe Date:
Permanent Secretary Ministry of Health

- — m— = = - SL L r e m—— =
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THE BHITER REPUBLIC OF TARZAMEL

MIKISTRY OF HEALTH

“T1370000 - BENJAMIN MEARPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

STATEMENT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ORGANIZATION OUTLOOK

Benjamin Mkapa Haspital (BMH) is 3 premier tertary
specialited referral hospital operating under the
Ministry ‘of Health in Tanzania. Dedicated to
pn:nwdmg E.xernp,{ar'_u medical care, BMH caters 1.+:-
both out- patm[tts and in-patients with 4 wide range
af spectalized  services. The  govérpmarce of the
hispital is everseen by a Board of Trustees, ensuring
that strategic decisions align with the hospitals
mission and vision.

The hosgital's executive leadership is spearheaded by the Executive Director, who
serves as the Chief Executive Officer and is tasked with the day-to-day management of
the hospital, ensuring efficient and effective operations across all departments.

The Heads of the Dircctorates ares:

1. Director of Administration and Human Resource Mandgeient
&, Darector-of Planning-and Finance

3. Birector of Medical Services
4. Director af Clinical Suppart
5. Directar of Surgical Services

& Brector of Nursing-and Clinical Administration Services
7. Director of Training, Research-and Teaching Coordination

The Heads of Units are;

. Chief Internal Auditor

. Head of Cueality Assurance

e B R, - U ERC A

. Head Bf Legal Services Unit

« Head of Communication and Public Reltations Uit
. Head of Prdcurement Management Unit

- Director of Technical Service and Estate Management Udit
- Director of Information and Communication Technology and Statistics-Unit

Together, the irectorates -and: Units wark in harmony to deliver high-goality
healthcare services, support the hespital's administrative Tunclions, sand promote
,Lnnt‘inunus improvermnent and infovation in medical practices. This collaborative
structure ensures that BMH remains at the forefront of healthcare provision in the
region, offering advanced medical treatments and fostering a  patient centred

approash to healtheare.

Controller and Auditer General
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANTANIX
MINISTRY OF HEALTH.
T1370000 - BEHJAMIN MEKAPA HOSPITAL [BMH)]

GOVERMING BOARD

The Board of Trustees of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital (BMH) comprises eight members,
E:'.__EEpi. the Hospital's Execitive Director, wha is a part of the q:gcg-:utive management,
All pther members are fon-exécutives. The Board Chairman 5 appointed by the
Homburable President of the: United Republic of Tanzania, following corstitutional
requirements. The other board members are appointed by the Honourable Minister of
Health.

As the highest dedision-making body of the Haospital, the Board is entrusted with
governing, controlling, and administering BMH. This involves making strategic decisions,
fnr‘rnulatlng bylaws and regulations, and approving pelicies that enhance eperational
E:r.ct!llEﬂc-E The Board ensures effective control and administration, praper
management of human, ﬁ*‘rancral and ph'_.'ts-ic'al. resources; and '|dEﬂl‘J‘1E'FHi‘;’jl risk areas.
i 05 aist responsible for considering -and m::rmttlrmg ivestment decisions and

significant financial matters and revigwing the performance of management’s business:

plans and budgets.

Additienally, the Board oversees the implementation of -a  comprehensive system: of
internal control policies.and procedures and ensures campliance with sound corperate
governance principles. To fulfil its responsibitities Efi-l:_-i:thE[‘,', the Board is required to
mieet at least fourtimes a year, During the period ending 30 June 2074, the Board Reld
four ordipary meetings. "

The day-to-day management of the Hespitals operations is delegated to the Executive
Director, wha is supported by a senier management team. This team is invited to
attend Board meetings o facilitate effective contral of all éperational activities and
BCh 35 a medivm of communication and coordination between various departments and
umits,

This governmarice: structure enstres that BME remains a leading institution in providing
high-quality healthcare servicos, guided by robust leadership and strategic oversight.

Composition of the Board of Trustees

SN Name of Position | Qualification/ |  Nationality Date of
member Brafession appointment
i CH FhD - Internal i By
medicine  -and |
P E;:—TMHI FRE !iﬁﬁfﬁ“f | Tanzanian 1540972021
Hasmatalagy -
| Oncology B |

KCantraller and. Auditor Gereral
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THE UNITEQ REPUBLIC OF TAMTANIA

TA310000 - BENJAMIN MEAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

i hesociats [
Ertal tpyrana H Prafassor
. e Miermber Olistetrics: & Takrzhrian 154097 1021
L [|Gynaceology |
i Mkt
B’_I ] ]
3. M&mﬁ Member Dl_:'itetrf'cs & | Tanwanisn 150952021
fir. Sheasdi
d; Yusuph Member WS Phipsics Tarfzanian TR DS I0E
Medical Docto:
Dr.. Sylvia V. (WD), Masters .
G ] ; : !
i Merhbie of lic TarAnian e LTl T ek
.y Health [MPH}
‘PhD i =
i (Cardiowascutar
’ Dr,-Bashir J s ; i i i
£ |5 Bﬂ s Member | Gorgeny MMed | Tanzanian 15/09/2021
Myarpdsa ] | ol
: - General
- | Burgary
B-a-!:helu.r af
Laws :I.LB}, i
- . Senlgr State _
7o | M dohn Kinmno | Membor | Attorney at | Tanzanian 15009 20
Aliormey
General
Ehambars ol
Specialist
. Pril, Abel oo | Bhysicteny cand | : £
- P Secretary Hér_u,a_um! Shikt Fanizanian O/ 06 £ 20724
Casgiologist |

“The Hmﬁli:al ¥ dedicated to upholding the princ pbes of effective corporate
gwerrmﬁccr it recognizes :ntegrtt:.f, transparency, -and accountability as sssential
pillars fur achrewng its nbjecmres To maintain high standards of governance, the
Hospital his establishied three key committees: Audit Commitles, |megrity Commities,
and Tender Board, Fach committes pﬂi'fﬂ-'l"mi Sﬁe‘ﬁiﬁn functions: that ::ﬂ[led‘:ﬁ*r‘éig
seontribute tothe Hoppital's overall organizational poats.

CBJECTIVE AND STRATEGIES

The objective of the Institution

The chjective of the institubion i carry'mg out its Tunctions and e:-‘.er-cfs‘in-g its prewers
as provided in -the establishing Act, 1§ ta enhance the provision of specialized and
Super specialized senvices.

AH.?EE.-'FB!I.H-I Pl ":'
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TAMZAMIA
MIRISTRY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJAMIN MEAFA HOSPITAL (B¥H)

strategies for Achieving Objective
The Hospital was in the mmlemematmn of 1ts First Strat‘egbr Plan (20197 20-2023/24)
whith was reviewed Lo 2025726 wheh executing the Wark Plan and Budget for the
fimancial year 2023/24. The Suategic Plan g3 the leading imstrument for planning,
priority setting; and dgci:sic:n.—n‘rakjhg._ it facilitates the discharging:of the rele and
functions -of the Hospital by the financial year 2025026, Specifically, the Plan
emphasizes strategies to be executed to achieve the strategic objectives including thie
fallowing: - '
a) Kidney Transplant Lnit strengthensd by June 2076
iy Short-Term

« Toconduct eutreach services for capacity budlding ta primary and secondary

ficalth facilities and the creation of CoOmmunity awareness

« Rengvation of ared reserved for-kidney Fansplant sorvices!

s hequisition of equiprment

=  Toattract new stafl

o Toretainexisting staff

u Er.'rl{a!:m:'atlan with other stakehalders
i) Mediom-Term

» Acquisition of eguipment
iily Long-Term:

= Standalone building for kidney transplant services

= Lopg-term training forstafif

= Broadened collabioration with ather stakeholders

b) Cardiovascular and Thoracic Centre established by June 2076
i} Short-Term '
= Acguisition-of eguipment
= Teattract new staff
»  Toretain existing staff
» Toconduct putreach services for capacity buliding to primary and secondary
health facilities. and the creation of community awareness:
i) M&_&d‘ium-TE'r'rh
e Coltaboration with other stakeholdérs through Memaranda of Understanding on
service delivery ' ' '
s Improvemant of cardiovascularand thoracic services,
i) Lone-Tarm
s Provision of all super-specialised cardiovascular sepvicas
« Establishment of 8 standalone cardiovascularcentrs
= Long-tern training for staff
= Broadered sollabaration with Bther stakehislders

Cantrollar and Auditor General B  AR/CGIBMH /102
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THE UHITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MIBISTRY OF HEALTH

T13T0060 - BENJAMIN MEAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

c} Bane marrow transplant service provided at BMH to 20 patients by June 2626

1 Short-Teom
= Establishment of bone marros transplant services for
patients.
s Acquisition of equipment
s Toattracth new staff
« Toretalnexisting staff

paediatric sickie cell

v Toconduct outreach services for capacity tuilding te primary and secondary
health fagilities and the creation of community awareness

i) Medium- Term

« Collaberation with other stakeholders through Memoranda of Underitanding on

ervice delivery
i) Long-Term '
= Long-term training for stagf
« Broadened coliaboration with other stakeholders

w Establishment of a standalone bore marrow transplant.centre
= Introduction of bone marrow transplant services far adull sickle cell patients
» Establishment of borie marrow transplant services as a leukaemia treatment

d) Provasion-of Radiotherapy, Chemotherapy and Muclear Medicing service

1y Shert-Term
s« Short-term training for staff
» Acquisition of eguipment
s [i attract mew sEaff
o T retain existing staid

= Toconduct outreach services for gapacity buftding to prismary and secondary
health facilittes and the creatton of communily. awarenzss

iy Mediem-Term

= Construction of Radistherapy, Chemotherapy and Huclear Meditine building
« Complignee with Enviranment impact Assessment and Social Impact assessenant

i} Loneg-Term
» Laong-term training for staff
« fBroadened collabaration with other stakehalders

= Establishment of radiotherapy, chemotherapy,. and nuciear medicine services

ascancer treatment

e} Orthopaedics, traumatology, and meursstrgery centre established by June 2014

it Short-Term
» Short-term-training for staff
= Acguisition of eguipment
= To attract new stafl

Contraller and Auditor General
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» To retain existing starf
= To conduct sutresch servides for capacity building to orimary and secondary
health facilities and the creation of communfty awareness

i) Medilm:Tern

. Ct:llahn_ra}:éun with other stakeholders
= CAcguisition of eguipment

i) Long-Term

« Long-term training for staff
o Corstruction of standalone buitding
= Broadened collaboration with uther stakeholders

£) listitute of Heaith and Allied stiences established at BMH by June 2075

i “Short-Term

«  Acquisition of ‘eguipment
= Ta retain existing staff

i) Medium-Term

= |ncrease o the number of courses offared by the Institute

i Lang-Termn

= Long-tenm training for staff

. Eqrﬁtru:ti::rr af Students. Hostel

« To attrar.:: rpee-.-'.- _ﬂ:af‘f

« Broadening coliabaration with other stakehalders
Instifute existing as @ semi-autonomous entity

= Construction of the [nstitute’s building

= Increasing the number of ehrolled students

Audip Committes

This committee plays a vital rele in assisting the Board of Trustees with its oversight
responsibilities, particutacly CORTCErTing {:natma‘l reporting, the internal control system
aver financial reporting, the awdit process, ‘@nd compliance with relevant laws and
regulatmns Established on 01 July 2019, the committes ensures: that these areas are
managed with utmost diligence and integrity. As of ‘30 June 2074, the committes
Lomprised the following members:

Y Hame

i

Pra:!'esalnh 1 | __ﬁn?rtm |

e b i

Controlter and Auditor General

1. Wilson Heae: Azsistant A:ﬂﬁunt‘anl E-Ene?ai-h'lmisl il Firianes Pk |
and Pﬂannmg.
A .na}t:_n_h_lil.ﬂl_m Human Resolcces Dfficer-Benjamin MEzpa Hospital ‘iEcretar_-,l i
. Exrernal
30 | Mwingd Durtia Aefountant - TARLIRA
e o et Member
| O, Hismphr o o 4
Kt i Madical Consultant-Benjamin Mkapa Hespital Internal Member
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[ Mame | Profession = | Position |
l i H J Dr I'-'.u'.s:r_gnc. Ehua &Eﬂlﬂ![ Eunw;tn.ni. E::ri]nmm Mkapa Hospital J_Jn_!'flrnurll h':n:rn‘acr J

Integrity Committee

The Ethical Committes of BMH was estabiished with the followine National Anti-
Carruption and Action Plan Phase Four [NACSAP |V) 20232030 |n February 2024, During
the year, it comprised of the following members:

5M Mame Frafession Position
1 | Ambels A Mssika Accauntant Chalrmar
i Frank Assenga - Health Secretary | Secretary
3 [ Amani¥ .l.-‘sanga Pharmacist Internal Member
4| Joyce Ndosi Mursing Officer Intarnal Member
5 Exavery € Satira Chief Intemal Auditor - Minlstry | External Member
of Canstitulion and Law
Tender Board

The Tender Board is respansible for executing its functions as outlined in the Public
‘Procurement Act Mo, 7 of 2011, 1t (s'appointed by the Executive Director fn strict
adherence ta the provisions of the Public Procurement Act of 2071 and its subsequent
regulations of 2013, a5 amended in Z2016. This board ensures thal procusement
processes at Benjamin Mkapa Hespital are conducted transparently, efficiently, and in
compliance with legal standards.

The members of the Tender Saard who served Bemamin Mikapa Hospital during the
year ending 30 June 2024 are as follows:

SN Name Position Quialification ]
L1 | D Alex Kimambo Chairpersan iedical Specialist ,
I | Bt Humghrey KHnmeeia Member Medical Specialist.
% Mwanaidi Makao Member Senior Mursing Cffices
4 | Sophia Tangalo Member Sefiar Human Resqurce Officer
5 | Ambele Msska Memboer Senior Accountant
& Kamenya J Sufi Mermber Arcotntant ,
T Erasto Rimwerd Member !’.'.rihdpﬁl Bfumeﬂ&EfEnginner [ |

OVERVIEW OF PLANNEDR BUDGET, FLIHI;'E RECEIVED AND EXPENDITURE

| am presenting the Financial Statements of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital for the financial

year ended 30 June 2024, These statements have heen prepared following

internatignal Public - Sector Accounting Standards {IPSAS) on an Accrual Basis. The

submission of these financial statements is'in fulfilment of Section 30 of the Public

Finance Act Cap 343 RE 2020 and Section 30 together with Section 31 of Audit Act Cap

1B RE 2020, Section 30(1} of Public Finance Act Cap 437, together with Section 31 ar’
Audit Act Cap 418, reguires the Accgunting Clrhcer to prepare and submit to the

Controller and Auditer General the Annual Financial Report. The report provides

Coritrolior and Auditor General C ARJ/CGHBMH (202,
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information about the fitancial position, financial performance. change in equity,
comparison of budget and acital amounts, cash flows, and notes to the financial
statements that will be wieful to the usgrs in making decisions on the allocited
resources and demonstrate the acoountability of the Oroanization: for the resources
entrusted toiL,

The roport also provides: information useful in predicting the level of roseurcos
required for continued operations, resources that may be generated by continued
operations, and the associated risks and uncertainties..

The financial statements for the: year, in particular, report the effort of the
management 0 implementing the budget of the Financial Year 2023/24. Budget
preparation was in adherence o gmdeImEﬁ msued by the Mimister -of Finance and
Planming, the Tanrania [.‘-'-E\-'E[n;:rment Vision (DV) 2025, Five Year Developmient Plan
tFYDP 10211 2022-2025,020267, Auting Party Election Manitesto of 2020, and plans and
priorities autlined in National Strategy for initiatives and strategic plan. The hospital
planned to mobilize funds amounting to. TI5 64,802.031,022, of which TI5
52,612,858,329.81 was collected from Own sources and Government Grants as detailed
it the Statement of Budget and Actual amount.,

ACHIEVYEMENTS REALISED DURING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF PLANNED OBJECTIVES
During the financial year 2023/24;, BMH achieved several successes: through the
implementaticn of varfous planned activities. These accomplishments were made
pusmbie through the use of recurrent [GE} funds, development funds, own source
collections, and donor support, Some of thE wey achievements included:

= The Hospital marked its sixth year since the dntroduction of Kidney Transplant
services in 2018. Since its inception, 40 patients have benefitted fram this service,
The average cost per kidney transplant is between 22 and 35 million if conducted
locally and betwieen 75 and 100 million if conducted outside the country. In thic
regard, theavailability of these services has significantly reduced medical costs
which could be barne by the Government.

= Introduction of cpen-heart surgery where 7 adult patients have benefitted, The
average cost-of the surgery-is TZ5. 70 million, which is significantly lower than if
done abroad, which has anvaversge of TS, 210 million

= Introduction of penile implant services where 2 patients have benefitted. The
average cost of the surgery is T25. 10 million compared to an average of T25..30
million if dene abroad:

= [ntroduction of Assisted Reproduction Unit

@tr_ﬁ__llg&r and Auuitu;_- Es,-n?.r;i

ARICGHBMH 202 12



THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZAKEA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH

T1AT0000 - BEN JAMIN MKAPA BOSPITAL (BMH)

» During the yesar, two research stiedies were published, with the following Hitles:!-

i.  “Clinical Preseotation and Treatment Outcomes of Pregnancy-Relatid
Acute Kidney Injury ameng Pregnant Women Admitted at the Benjamin
Mrapa Hospital in Tanzania"®

ii. "Baseline Internal Survey of Client Exit Interviow toAssess Satisfaction of
Health Services at Benjamin Mkapa”

« Introduction of a Certificate of Basic Ultrasound kmaging dourse where 13 nurses
werg enrelied during the period,

= The number of students pursuing a Piploma in Diagnostic Radiography offered at
Benjamin Mkapa Institute of Health and Allied Sciences [BMIHAS) increased from 48
to 104,

Furthermore, BMH continued providing sther medical services, which include the
follewing:

i The number of surgeries performed was 8,645 as at June 2024 compared £o
7,033 in the previous year, equivalent toan Increase of 238

InGovernance, the fellowing achievements were realized:

= Four (4) Board meetings and Thirty (30) Executive committee meetings have been
conducted; Fifteen (20) Management: meetings were held.

o Two (02Z) staff meetings were covensd

= Two (2) Woekers” Counetl meetings were held in August 2023 and February 2024

s 114 5talf were promoted, and 12 staff were recatesorized.

» The number of staff employed on permanent and pensionsble terms-increased
from 593 in June 2023 Lo 687 in June 2024,

= The Hospital has facilitated 50 staff to pursue specfalised and super-specialised
studies domestically and abroad ' '

» [ntemal and external audit queries raised were responced to accordingly.

» Setaff participation in budget preparation improved and awareness of budoet
impiementation increased,

= The Hespital has continued wsing the MUSE accounting System which §s dwned by
the Government of Tanzania. This system is integrated with 1HMIS and GePG
whereas reveriue infermation caplured Trom these two systems is automabically
transférred to MUSE. Further, MUSE has been integrated with PlanRep,
necessitating the flow of budgeting information from PlanRep 1o MUSE. Thess
integrations have made it possible to recrieve crucial information which is pivotal
in the preparation of reliabie financial statements.

Cantraller and Auditar Gereral AR/CG/BMH /202 10
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Dther nil:z_t.ahi__e milestanes during the year under review are as shown in the. table

“Conducted twe (1) scréening and surgical camps where 3 total of |

“Conducted three -|E“:|'5:;reenfn_g-a'nd iurgﬁ;aT ca_rﬁ'ﬁre “a total |

ene hundred and sideen {116} childeen wisre scrpensd and cight |

of ane hundred and sixty-thiee: (30d) children were soreaned,
four (8) spen heart sufgery, and bwelve (21) catheterization

Conducted one (1) screening and surgical camp where a total of |
three: hundred: fifteen (315) clients were screened and four (3)

These ciganizations have donabéd funds: thal capagitated
ophthalmology screening and surgicel outrgach activities for 3243

The -hospital -has a memorandum of understanding with APOF |
which §5.am- kcalfan association. APOF donated & machine: for
Digital Pathology 1o the Benjamin Mkapa Hospital. the instaliation

APOF will be training patholosists and fab scientists of BMH i

belove:
5N | COLLABORATORS | ACTIVITIES
1. |Children Heart Chartty
Assockation from Buwait
{BY open heart surgery were peclormed.
. | Dac Hew Heart ang
Grganization fram
Tonzanta and For Heart
‘and  Soids from the | labioratory (Cath Lab) procedures were performed,
United States of America
3 |Ziekenbuisgroep  Twente
{Z4T) for Netherlands
bpen Ineart surgeries were performed.
4, | Light for the World and
Kilimanjars Céntré  for
Carnmirifky clients/patients.an different disteicts of the Dedoma Region.
Cohthatmalogy
¥ ASLOCiation of
Pathaolopists of Frantiers
(APDF)" _ b el
L-af this maching was done on 17 June 2024,
mid:Séptember, 2074
2.2 Challenges

Despite the achievements realized in implementing the BMH programme and the
recent initiatives, there are some challenges as listed below:

Inadequate financial resources,

Inadequate number of employess.

Unritiable transport facilities for employees.

Unrefiable transpart for patients from City Centre Lo Hospital

Unretiable'supply of medical consurmables for specialized services

Frequent damages 1o water infrastructisre and medical equipment due to-hard

WRLET.

Controller and Auditor General
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2.3 Way forward
BMH s looking for ways to expand ifs revenue sources by increasing the number of
specialized and super-specialized medical services, expanding the existing services,

utitizing the available facilities to collect revenue from non-medical services; liamsing

with local and foreign stakeholders for Tacjlitating the provision of quality and reliable
medical services o the needy. The implementation of these effarts.to expand revenue
will be done through Service and Business Plans that are in the preparation stage. In
this endeavour, the Hospital collaborated with various stakeholders to ensure medical
services were provided at the optimal capacity. Same of them include the Umiversity
of Dixdoma [UDOM), Takushukal Medical Group - Japan, Apallo Hespitals - India, Jakaya
Kikwete Cardiac Institute (JKCI), Régional Referral Hospitals (RRH), and Hilimanjaro
Center for Community Ophthaimolegy (KCCO) and Light For The World (LFTW],
Construction for the radiotherapy building is ongsineg and is expected to be completed
by June 2025. Likewise, a plan for the establishment of the Centre for Cardiovascular
Diseases is underway.

The medical axygen gas plant, now fully wperational, has effectively addressed the
shortage of madical gas at BMH and has extended its impact througheut the region,
the Central Zone, and the country asa whole, Furthermore, by distributing a portion
of the produced gas to other health facilities locally and beyond, the plant also serves
as an additional source of revenue,

= Management will keep on communicating with:the Ministry of Health: and Public
Service - Establishiment to resolve the inadequate number of staff,

=  Management will continue liaising with various authorities such as the City
Council Directar and LATRA to overcome transport challenges by channeling
more bules to UDOM, especially the BMH route.

» Having acquired a &5-seater Staff bus during 2021/7022, BMH is considering
procuring another bus in 2024/ 2025 ta further mitigate the transport challengg,

« Management will continue to support staff to get short-term and long-term
training in various Institutions to obtain the reguired skills:

« Management will continue to promote collaboration with other health facilities
thraugh Public Private Partmership (FFF)

= Management will consistently prioritize the atlocation of funds in the ﬁl:l-i::g'E:L' Fir
the acquisition of medical equipment, ensuring that the hospital 15 well-
equipped to support both new and expanding medical services, This ohecing
commitment underscores: the importance placed on maintaining cutting-adge
technalogy and resources necessary for high-quality patient care,

* [Inaddition Lo managing all emergencies, the Hospital's Emergency Preparedness
Team {EPT) will ‘continue to affer education on disaster management, disease
preparedness -including for pandemics—neatth risk reduction,. and strategies to
prevent the spread and recurrence of diseases. ]

kuntrﬂl’rfr an iuﬁqﬁﬁara’a! o
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1.0 General Issues

Since its inception, BMH has maintained robust internal control systems that have

played a pm:-taL role in enhancing risk management related to assets: and other
resgurces. The internal Audit and Quality Assurance sections have besn instrumental in
continually impraving proventive, detectivie, and corrective controls, thereby enabiing
management to execute its duties with greater-efficiency. Owver the past year, there

‘have been no reports of fraud or corruption, reflecting the effectiveness of these

systerns.  Additionally, customer ;mpla!nts have been promptly addressed, with
focused efforts made to enhance customer service during the financial year 2023/24.
Hecugnfr:mg, the importance of both internal and external costamers to the tuspitat's
existence and sustainability, mamsagement is committed to theroughly assessing areas
requiring improvement. This approach ensures that BMH continues ta meet the needs
of Tts stakeholders effectively, fostering a culture of accountability and continuous
improvement. The cngoing attention to refining processes and services underscores
BiH's dedication to maintaining fts reputation as @ trustwerthy and responsive
lealtheare provider. Through these efforts; the hospital aims to build stronger
relationships with its stakeholders and ensure the long-term success of its operations.

o
%LMWJ{;'% 7 / [z r;;ﬂ?)?_f

Prof, Abel N Makubi Date
Accounting Cfficer
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The Manasement of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital is respansible for the preparation of
annual Financtal Statemients, which give a true and fair view of the entity's state of
affairs and its operating results following international Public Sector Accounting
Stanclards (IPSAS) on the Accrual basis, and B conformity with Section 30 of Pablic
Finanee: Act Cap «438. The responsibility includes designing, implementing; and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of financial
itaternenlzs that are free from rnatenal misstatement, whether on account of fraud.or
errar, se!echrng and applying apprnpﬂata accaunting pnhties and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable: in the circumstances which provide reasonable
assurance that the transactions recorded are within statutory authority and properly
recorded the use of all-public financial resources accordingly.

To the best of our knowiedge, the system of internal control has operated adequately
throughout the reporting peried: and the records and underiying scoounts provide 4
reasonable basie for the preparation of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30
Jung 2074, Srocurement of goods, works and.consultancy and non-consiltancy services,
to the extent that they are reflected in these financial statements, has been carried
out following the Public Procurement Act no, 9 of 2011 and it Regulations 2013 as
amended in 2076.

We accept responsibility for the integrity of these financial statements, the
information they contain, and the compliance with the Public Finance Act Cap 438 and
its Regulations of 2013, Intermational Public Sector Accounting Standards [IPSAS)
Accrual basis, and ouidelines issued from time to time by Paymaster Gensral and
Accountant General. The management 35 taking all responsibility by creating
confidence in users of these financial statements that they show the true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the reporting entity,

Nothing has come te the attention of the management that the financial statements
€0 nat present fairly in all material respects the state of affairs of the entity and that
thi entity will not remain a esing concern for the next twelive months from the date of

these statements,

@‘Am / ?,*'!G-g {Z&-?_Sr

Brof, Abal N Makobi Bate

Accounting OFfficer
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DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE AND ACCOUNTS.

The Mational Board of Accountants and Auditors {HEAA) accerding o the power
conferred under the Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. Mo 33 of 1972, as
amierided by Aot Mu 2 of 1'395 requires financial staterments ta be m;cmnpameqf by a
declaration issued by the Head of F1I'ﬁarrEE responsible for the creparation of financial
statements of the entity concérmed,

It is my duty s a Professional Actountant to assist the Maragement i discharging the
responsibility of proparing financhal staternents of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital that show
a true and fair view of the entity's position and performance following applicable
International Accounting Standards and statutory financial reporting’ regquirements:
Full lf.'gal responsibility for the preparation of financial statements rests with the
Managemum as stated under the Management Res:mrmbmry statément an the
preceding page,

I, CPA (T) Ambele. & Mssika, hm;ng the Head of Finance and Acceunts of The Beajamin
Mkapa Hospital, hereby acknowledge my responsibility of ensuring that the finangial
statemnents for the year ended 30 June 2024 have been prepared fn compliance with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards [IPSAS) under the accrual basis of
Accounting and other statulory reguirements.

| thus confirm that the finandial statéments give a true and fair view of the pusition of
The Benjamin Mikapa Hospital as of that date and that they have been prepared based
on properly maintained financial records.

Sigmed by b0
Position: Birector of Planning and Finance

NAAA Memtr@rsh g Mo ACPA 6593

Date:, 1':1 E—E\bﬂﬂf'?u 2!'325
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COMMENTARY TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
1.0 INTRODUCTION

These: Financial Statements have been prépared by The Benjamin MKapa Hospital
Management following section 25 (2) of the Public Finance Act 2001 Cap 348, They
have been prepared and presented based on the Accrual basis of accounting according
to  |PSAS%s. Mevertheless, additional details have been included to promote
understandmg and comprenension of the data as required and in compliance with the
international Public Sector Ascourting Standards for the accrual basis of accounting,
This {5 this:third time for the Hospital to be audited apd individuatly issued with a
separate opinion. Before that, the Hospital was audited and consatidated in the parent
Mimstry Financial Statement, and therefore, there was no comparability in some
instances where comparisons were made; it aimed at easing understandability and
decision-making as per para 57 of IPSAS 1.

1.0  OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements for the fimancial year 2023724 fnclude a Statement of Financial
Position, a Statement of Financial Perlormance; a Statement of Changes In Net Assets,
a Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amount, a Cash Flovws Statement, and
Explanatory Motes, '

2.1 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue from Exchanse transactions

Revenue from Exchange transactions stood at 36,863,518,622.25 compared to T7%
36,189,761,022.57 of the previous year, which is equivalent to & 2% increass. The
increase in revenue was caused by expanding existing services and intreducing new
services, such as lurg function tests and haemophilia clinics, Further, the number of
pﬂtleﬂt‘}hﬁs increased due to the q-LI:‘IlIl:.':,-' services offered by BMH.

Amartization of Revenue Grants with Exchequer Revenue

During the year under review, the Hospital received government grants for ather
r.hargea :{JC:, Local Bevelopment grants and Employee salaries a.l'n{:lul'lnl'_lﬂg te TZ5
17, 474479, 830, which is equivalent to a0 11% decrzase from the previous amount of
TZ5 15,508,221,353.00 decrease has been caused by delayed fund rocoipt from the
Government, -

Revenue Grants- Non-Monetary

Rewenue grants - non-monetary amounted to TZS 879,015, 81 for the yoar under review,
compared to Tih 3;153,247,278 in the previous year. Mon-monetary revenue grants
typicatly refer to grants provided in the form of geods, services, or other assets rather

EGontroller and Suditor General ARACGIIBMH 2Dz, 2
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than cash. The sigmificant decrease in non-mohetary grants from the previeus year
indicates a reduction in the value of goods or services received or passibly & shift in
thi type of suppert provided.

Other Revenue

Cther revenue for the year under rewiew amounted to TZS 71,693,500, compared to
TZ5 1,425,000 in the previous year. Other revenue refers ta income that does not fall
under specific, predefined categories such as sales, grants, or donations. It may
include varaus ferms of income that the organization receives, which are not regularly
recurring or classified under core operational activitios.

Wages, salaries, and.employee benefits.

The Hospital has incurred a total of T25 21,985,635,304.70 for employees’ benefits
for the year under review, compared to the previous yeads TZS 70,048,200, 755 which
is eauivalent toa 10% increase in expenditure attributed to the increased nuember of
staff paid salaries and other employee benefits.

Use of goods and service

Incurred expenses for supplies and sonsumable goods for the year under m*-"lew WAL
TEZS 18,632 618,344.86 compared to the previous year's T2S 17,011,446,488, which is
equinialent toa T0% increase in expenses ineurred was attributed to increased demand
far medical supplies to cater for the increased number of patients served during the

year,

Other Transfer
Benjamin Mkapa: Hospital has contributed ar amount.of TZ5 15,000,000 to the Tréasury
registrar's effice as-anaonual contribution during the engolng audit.

Other expenses

The amount of other sxpenses TZ5 3,558,051, 734 includes Motor Vehicles insurance,
consultancy | expenses; payment of dividends to the Government, and Specialized
Equipment and Supplies for the year under review compared to TZS 409,372 863 of
last tinancial: year, The Increase is mainly atiribuled to Specialized Equipment and
Stpglics.

Social expenses

The soctal. expenses/benefits for the year under review amount to TZS 463,357,443,
compared te TZ5 598,471,515.00 in the previous year. These expenses cover PLHA
benefits and medical exemptions msyed taspetial groups.

Controller and Auditor General
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Routine maintenance and repair

TE5 5,935,799,492 was ihcurred for rowting: maintenance and repalr during the year
under Teview’ compared to TZ5 5,713,777, 72542 in the previous year This amount
increased by 3,883 the pravious year,

Depreciation and amortization skpenses

During the Year BMH charged TIS 16,118,715,501 a5 depreciation frem MNon-Current
Assets for the yoar under the review compared to TZ5 16,984,156,009.40 of the
previous year, The increase is due to additional assets acquired during the vear under
rEview,

2 ISTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

This staterment comprises: - Cash and cash equivalents, receivables; inventories,
prepayments, Property and Plant and Equipiment, pavables, deposits, and et
ASserEquity.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents for the year under review include cash and bank
balances amaisnting to TZ5 3,957 652,109.15 compared to TZ5 1,908,989.807.26 in
the: previous. year after-taking nto account of adoption of PSAS 41 (Expected Credit
Losg).

Receivables

Peiring the year under review, receivables amounted to TES 9, 106,789,966 81,
compared to TAS 10,231,282,690.02 in the previous year. This/increase was due to
unpaid claims submitted to service beneficiaries, wha had not settled their claims on
time after taking into account of adoption af IPSAS:41 (Expected Credit Loss).

Inventories

The Inventaries were T28 3,335,643 337 in the year under review compared ta T25
208,749,352 40 the previous yeal. The joventory increase was due 10 the constemables
and medical supplies procured near the end of the fiscal year., o

Frepa_'_n,r_mcfta;-

Crring the year under review, there was no prepayment recorded. This means that re
payments were rmade Th advarce for goods or services that were (o b received in the
futuira,

‘Property, Plant and Equipment

“ﬂmml[er ahﬂ -ﬂ.udltﬁr Eenwai
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During the: year under review, the net book value of Property, Plant, and Equipment
(PPE) was TZ5 76,458,633 506. The value of land acquired for TZS 87,455,600, located
at [yumbu with an area of 12,046 square meters, has been distlosed. However, the
valug of the 1and on which the hospital Buildings are situated is not disciosed, as it
still belongs to the University of Dodoma. Discussions are ongoing betweaen the Ministry
of Education; the Ministry of Heatth,-and Benjamin Mkapa Hospital to secure the right
of -occupancy for this land. Additionally, the value of the land for the staff houses at
lyumbu has not yet been determined by the Mational Housing Corporation, as it
requires farmal procedurcs.

Work in Progress

The Wark in Progress (WIP) for the year under review amountad ta T75 8,865,552, 702,
This represents the value of projects or work that were in pragress but had not yet
been completed by the ond &f the reporting periad. WIP includes costs assaciated with
angoing construction, development, or other activities that are part of 2 larger project,
These costs are incurred a5 work progresses but are not yet finalized or ready for full
recoenmition 1nthe financ!_qL statement.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets amounted to T25 57,793,400 during the year under review, which is
the samé amount as in the previous year. This amount felates to the Asset
Managerent System installed for the hospitat's use in recording fiked assets. The
system has not yet been completed, as some categories have not been customized.
The paymerit made represents the first instalment for the SyStem.

Payables (Dutstanding liabilities)

Qutstanding biabiliies. amounted to TZS 10,431,136,936 for the year under review,
compared to TZS 4,343,072,252 in the previoos year. These outstanding Habilities
were primgrily due 1o unpaid drugs and medicings, unpaid consamable medical
supplies, unpaid hospital supplies, and other sernces provided by suppliers that had
not been paid by the ead of the ywear, June 30, 2024

Deposits
Cepasits anmunl‘ed o TS 535,471,253, which includes & general deposit of TIS

785,122,435 and an unapolied deposit account balance of 15 249, 348,817.09 The

acneral ﬁei:ﬁsﬂ represents funds held Tor u.arinu_s__purpngﬁs, while the unapplied
deposit ‘account refers to amounts that have not yet been allocated or applied to
specific transactions or accounts;

Taxpayers fund
This consists of menies invested by the Government to satisfy Tndividual or collective
needs or to créate future benefits, It includes all mondes invested in capital

Contraller and Auditor General

ARVCGHEBMH 1202 25



THE UNITED REPLIBLIC OF TANZAMLA
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T1370000 - BERJAMIN MEAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

sxpenditure. For the year ended 30 June 2024, the Taxpayer stood at TZ§
139,667, 323,433.03.

Met-Assets/Equiby

The Benjamin Mkdpa Hospital has a Met Asset/ Equity of TZ5 00,456,590,529.24 as of

30 Jurie 7024 for the year under review. An 1% decrease from the previous year's
ampunt of TES 106,528,777,698.45 5 attributed to increased expenses during the year
under feview, which has significantly contributed by payments of wades, ‘salariet,
employes benefits; and use of goods. and services:

2.3 COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMDUNT

The final budget for the year under roview was TZS 64,802, 031,022, of which TZS
57,622,996,558.44 was the actual collection.

Wages, salaries, and employee benefits

Expenditures: for wages, salaries, and employee benefits for the Financial Year
2023/24 were TI5 71,985,635,303.00 whereas the budget was T25 21,827,.980,720.70
was spent in payment of staff arrears, employment of news staff, and staff promotion,
which iz equal to 99% of the total budget

Use of goods and services

The final budget for this. itém was TIS 23,766,482 028, whereas T7ZS
16, 782, 643,266.60 was spent, equal to 72% of the total budget. The unspent amiount
of TIS 6,483,828,761.40 was caused by a delayed release of funds from MHIF and
other senvice: benefimaries,

Routine maintenance-and repairs

The final budget for rautine maintenance was TI5 6,960,033,221 during the vear under
review. Actual expenditure for the perice was TZ5 4,630,411,4585.12, Equwal,.ent to 67%
of the planned budget, The unspent amount is attributed to a delay in receiving Flnds
from sendce beneficiaries.

Purchase/ Construction of Non-Current Assets

The budget for the purchase/construction of non-current assets was TZ5 7,521,039.397
while the actual amount spent was TZS 2,200,562, 118.00 We have provided services to
varigus: health insurance: compames but they have not paid their debts en time, thus
failing to implement cur budgets as planned Anather reasen is that the Government
failed ta remit funds for the construction of a radiotherapy bullding and purchases of
medical squipment

_ ARICGHBIH /202
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MINISTRY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BEMJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)
3.0 AUDITORS

The Controlier and Auditor General (CAG) is the statutery auditor for Benjamin Mkapa
Haspital pL_lr-’EL:IEL:l'It to the: provisions of Article 143 of the Constitution of the United
Republic of Tanzania of 1577, the Public Audit Act, 2008, and Paragraph 3 {1) of The
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital (Establishment) Instrument, 2015 GM no 453 of 2015,

5 (72 /2025
Frof. Abel N, Makubi Date
Accounting Officer
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THE HMITED REPUBLIC OF TANZAMIA
MINISTEY OF HEALTH
TA3P0000 - BERIAMIN MEAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

STATEMENT OF FIMARCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

ASSETS

Cuifrent Asser . 1
Cash and Cazh Equivalents
Recoivables

Brepayments.

fmvantories:

Tatel Carrent Asset
Mon-Current Assat

Property, Plant ardd Enuipment
intansible Assets.

Wiork: In Proeress

Total Mon-Current Asset
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Cuerent Liabiiitias
FPayables and Accruals
Peferred Income
Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Het Assets

MET ASSETS/EQUITY
Capital Contributed by:
Taxpayers/Share Capital
Accumulabed Surpluses [ Beficits
TOTAL NET ASSETS/EQUITY

Accouniting Offfcer

MEGmR wa Unasibu Serikatin (MUSE)

E_mtn:ﬁlﬁe* ﬂgﬁ Au:_l_il;u_:lr_ﬁ_a:-rfr_qi

Mote

57

&9
¥

Fi
78
8

&
493
94

FRIEA
25

3,957,652,109,13
0106, 8% 96681

3,335 643,337, 29
16,399,585 413:25

76,458, 653,505.65
57,97 3, 400.00
6,865,557 202 24
B5,382,179,107.89
11,781, Thd4, 57114

18,431, 136 986, 43
458,565,752.70

SIE. AT ST
11,325,173 ,991. 90
11,325 173,991.90

00, 456,590,529, 24

139,667,323, 433.03
(A9, 2910, 73T, 903, 79)
B0, 456,590,525, 24

I0FTT
TZ%

1,908, 989,201 .28
10,331, 282,690.08
1870342 463 42
2008 749, 351.53
14,219, 364,306,213

89,960,358 432,11
ST BT 400.00
8,534,153,812.17
#6,652,485,644.21
110,871,849,950 45

4,343,077,257 00

4,343 07225200
4,343 ,072,252.00
104,528, 777,698.45

139, 667,323.433.03
(33,138,545, 73458}
106,528,777,698.45

[9/0R (28

Date
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= e E THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TAMZARIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH
T1ITO000 - BEMIAMIN MRAFA HOSPITAL (BMH)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 10 JUNE 1024
Mote 2023424
REVENUE TZS
Revenue Grants 18 B72,015,815.00
Revenue from Bxchange Transactions 35,863,518 627 25
Fair value Gairs on Assets and Liabilities 24 8,172.559.72
Other Revenue 3 71,693,500.00
Subvention from othier Government entities 32 17,974,479 830,15
TOTAL REVEMUE 55,296 880,.327.13
EXPENSES AND TRAHSFERS
Wages, Salaries and Emploves Benafits 34 21,985, 635,104.70
Use of Goods and Service 35 18,631,618, 144,36
Maintenance Expenses. 16 5,925,799 49213
Imgairment of Recefvakiles 44 4,394,398, 027 .66
Other Expenses a1 3,558,051,734.08
Expected Credit Loss 54 265,481 649,75
social Benefits 56 463,367 443.00
Depreciation of Property, Flant and Equipment 77 16,118,715, 500.65
Total Expenses 71,354,067, 496,34
Transler
Other Transférs bl 15,000,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS
Surplus / Defigit for the period

Pty

Aeoounting Dfficer

Mfuma wa Ehasibn Secikatint (MUSE)

Contratie snd Auiter Ganrl

71,369,067,496_34
(16,077,187,169.24)

gferlezs

DEte

2024723
TS5

3,153,247, 278.00
36,189, 761,621.57

1,425,000.60
15,506,221,352.88

54,850,654, 653.45

20,048, 200.755.05
17,001, 446, 487.81
5,113,777 719,63
3.266,408,603.00
40%,377,863,36
2,478,241,190.78
398, 471,515.00
16,984, 156,009.40

66,450,075, 154.03

&6, 450,075,154.03
{11,599,420,500.58)

AR/CGHEBMH 1202] 29
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THE UNITED REPLIBLIC OF TANZAMIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH
T13T0000 - BENIAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2023,

1. GEMERAL INFORMATION

The Benjamin Mkapa Hospital (BMH) is anindependent and autonomeols sovernmont
entity under the Ministry of Health, The Hospital was established under the Benjamin
Hk-:j:pa Hospital {Establishiment] Instrument of 2015, published through Government
notice number 453, The Hospital s mandated to provide: specialized and - super-
specialized services such as medical services, ard undertake research and training
ackivities. The Hospital started its operations effective from 15 October 2015,

THE ADDRESS OF ITS REGISTERED OFFICE:
Benjamin Mikapa Hospital,

P.0 Box 11085,

DODOMA, TAMTZANIA

BANKERS:

Bank of Tanzania

18 Jakaya Kilwete foad,
F. O. Box 2303,

Codoma

Accaunt oy 9925263151 Balance- TZ5 3,256,445%,296.75

1) Kational Micrefinance Bark

LEOM Branch,
PO, Bow 277,
bodoma '
Account Be: 52070067207 Balance- TZS 476,862,457.39
52010067902 Balance- TZ50
52010068548 Balance- 250
%) CRDB Bank Pl
LDOM Branch,
0. Box 1879, Dadama
Accaant na: 0150222162800 Balance: TZ5 50,000.00
31 TPB Bank Plic
S0OKD KUU Branch,
PO Box 134,
Bexfoma _
Acoount gt 323208000008 Balance- TZ50

pntroller and Auditor General T ARicGrEmH oz



S THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MAHISTRY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENIJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)
LAWYERS
Attorney General,
The Office of Attorney General,
P 0. Box 830,
Pexdarna
AUDITORS

Controller and Auditor General,
The Hational Audit Dffice,
Audit House,

4 Mahakama Road,

P. 0. Box 950,

41104 Dodoma

BaASIS OF PREPARATICON

These financial staternents. comply with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards - Accrual basis of accounting, the measurement bases applied s historical
cost, The financial statements have been préepared on-a goirg concern basis and
accounting policies have been applied comsistently throughout the period. Moreover,
the financial statement has been prepared following the requirements of the Public
Finance Act; Cap 418, The Financial Statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings
(TL5),

3.0 Authorization Date.
The firancial statement was auth:;lm'ed for 15!‘.-I'.E1'|2ﬁ.|h|.ltﬂfl]ﬂ an g it
Mame: Prof, abel N Makubi  Title: Accounting Officer  Signaturedl

4.0 Reporting Entity _
The firancial® statements are for the Benjamin Mkapa Hospital. The f1!_‘|ant:ial
statemente encompass the raperting entity as specified in the relevant legislation.

5.0 Government Business EntitiessSignifizant Controlled Entities
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital has no significant controtled Entities for the financial year
ended 30 June 2023.

6.0  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.
The accolnting policies adopted, which are consistent with those of previous years,
are shown balow,

rl:nn:rn!l.zr and Awditm' Gancﬂli
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA:
MIKISTRY. OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJIAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

6.1 Forelgn currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[Eems included in the financial statements of the Government arg meéasured using the
turrency of the primary gconomic environment o which the Government operates
(“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Tanzanian
Shitlings (TZ5), which is the Government’s funcrigaal and presentation currency,

Translations and balances

Forelgn currency transactions .are transiated into Tanzanian Shillines using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
Insses resuiting from the settlemeént of such transactions and the transaction at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of financial performance

6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances in the statement af financial position comprise cash at banks
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and are
measured at amartized cost. For the cash flow statersent, cash and cash eqnvalents
consisl of cash and ‘cash eguivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bark
overdrafts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IPSAS pequirés the use of
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asssts, liabilites. and
disclosure of contingent assets and babilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts: of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the directors’ best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewead on an ongoing basis, Revisicns to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revisoed i
the revision affects-only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the reyvision affects both current and future periods. The most significant use of
judgment and estimates are a3 follows:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The Hespital has made accounting estimations of the useful lives of property, plant
and eguipment, and intangible assets based on the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits and reviewed 115 depreciation rates. The uséful tives
of ‘ftems of property and eguipirent have been eitimated annually and are-in line
with the rate at which they are depréciated, The management has assumed that all
assets were available for use since this financial year as it is not possible to. exactly
determine when assets were available for use since the inception of the assets of the

Contraller and Auditer Ganaral ARACEHEMH f207) 35



THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANTAMIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH
TAR70000 - BENJAMIN WKAPA HOSFITAL (BMH)

Hospital and after being transferred to BMH as per Paragraph 71 of IPSAS 17,

SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT A{IGUN TING POLICIES
The “principal. accounting nnhnm adopted in the preparation’ of these ﬂr'ra.n-:::al
statements are setout below:

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions - IPSAS 23

Hon-exchange revenue represents government assistance or transfer of resources o
the Hospitals in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating
te the operating activities of the Hospital. When the conditions attached to non-
exchange have been complied with, they are recognised n the statement of financial
perfarmance as nammal income,

Subvention from Government

Subvention comprises funds recaived from the Gevernment ta caler for employees'
salaries and other operational costs. These are unconditional and are credited to the
statement of financial performance in the period in wihich they are received,

Government grants

‘apvernment. grantsoarg not recognized until there i5 reasonable assurance that the

Government will comply with the conditions attached te them and that the arants will
be received. Other Government grants are recoenized as income over the periods
necessary fo match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate: on
a systematic basis. Government granl.& that are receivable as compensation far
expenses or losses already fncurred or to give immeédiate financial suppart to the
Governmient with no future related costs are recognized in the statement of financiat
perfarmance in the periad in which they become receivable:

Donations

‘Support from denors both in cash and in-kind is recognfsed when it is recgived,

Revenue !'rurn Exchange Transactions

Revenue s defined as the grass inflow of economic berefits o service potential

recelved and receivable by the Hospital during the reporting peripd which represents

an increase in aet assets other than relating w0 contributions from owners.

DEher fmcame
Other inceme is recognised in the period in-which it is earmed. Thig includes fines and
rental income,

Cmtrnllnr & .nudimr Eeneral
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THE UKITED REPHBLIC OF TANZAMIA
MIHISTEY OF HEALTH
T13T0060 - BENJAMIN MEAFA HOSPITAL (BSH)

Inventacies

Inventories are stated at the lower cost and replademient cost, Costs incurrad in
bringing each prodoct to WS present location and condition. dre arepupted far ag
follawes _

L Atationeries and other consumables-cast is determined first in first out

. Raw materials-purchage cast an a first-in- first-out hasis

¥ “Finishied goods and wWork In progress- the cast of direct materials and labiour
anda proportion aaf manm’actunng overheads based on nprmal capacity but excliding
barrowing costs:

The current replacement .cost is-the cost that the entity would incur to-acquire. the
asset an the réporting date.

Met realizable valug s the estimate of the selling price: in the ordinary course of
business, less the selling expenses. The current replacement cost is the cost the entity
would: fncuer toacquire the asset on the reporting date . Provision for impairment -is
made Tor slow-maoving and obsolete stock.

Related Party

The Board Members, including the Chairman, and Senfor Management efmployees
(Birectors and Heads of Unit) d4re related parties for the Hospital, Related party
tranm::tmﬁs curing the irrranl:ral year ended 30 June 2024 are Board Mombers
expenses amounting to TZS 62, :"ICI 613 (30 Juna 2023: 62,720,611

Transfer of resources and/or -obligations between related parties during the year
ended 30 June 2024 included the following:

ay Board Members Expenses

2024 2023
Director's fees 49 500, 00 A%, 500,000
Subsistence Allowsnces - Domestic B A 8,525,000
Ajr Travel Tichets - Domestic 1,360, 300 1,360,900
Ground Trave! Expontes 3334112 3334712
aub Tobal - Board Member's Expenses 52 720,672 BT B1Y

‘b) Birectors Fees, Senior Management Salary and other benefite
Mo, of Peaple;
204 2023
Directiors Fops? 7

Comtraller and Auditer Gahgral
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Basic Salary;

Edecutive Director 72,000,000, 00 72,000,000.00
Pireetors 5 237000, 000 AT 0 O 50
Heoads of Lnit 3 S 4 33, D00, 0 S99 432, 000,00
hssisgant Mrectars: 16 B4, BEG, SO0.00 B, 850, 00D. 00
Sub-total for Bastc Salary 25 495,012,000.00 495,012,000.00
Allowanoes™®; .
Exetitive Directo 1 16,560.000 16,560,000
Hirectors 5 63,400,000 65,400,900
Heads of Unit 1 19,240,000 39,240,000
Assistant Directors. 16 200,280, DG 205,180,000
Sub-total for Allowances 330,480,000 330,480,000

Property, Plant and Equipment

sl property, plant, and eguipment -are initially recorded at cost and thereafter
stated at historical cost less depreciation, less any cumolative asset impairment.
subseqizent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the current
economic benefits and meet the recognition criteria. Expenditure incurred to replace
a companent-of an item of property and equipment is accounted For separately and
capitalized while the major replaced component is dEf&tﬂqﬂriEd AlL ‘other
expenditure Ttems, which do net meet recognition criterfa, are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance as expenses as they are incurred,

Estimated Useful Life (EUL):
Depreciation on assets is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost
of each asset, over their estimated useful lives, The depreciation rates afe as follows:

aemmm intion of Asset Estimated Useful Life (EUL) Rate p.a.
Hospital B|._1'_H_¢__15n£1. &0 1 1667
Resldential Hotses _ - P 1
Property, plant, and machinery [ 20.00%
| Furniture and fittimes 5 20.00%
Motor vehicles 10 20.00%
Office eguipment 10 20.00%
| Medical equipment 3 20.00%
| ICT equipment n:hardv.rargj 3 1. 1‘!';!.
| Cibrary Books "0 _ 20.00%

The tarq_i'irig values of cash-generating property, plant, and equipment are reviewed
for impairment when events or changes jn circumstances indicate that the carrying
valué may not be recoverable,
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An itemn of ‘property, plant, and equipment and any slgﬁifltant part initially recognised
i5 de-recogrised upon disposal or when no future économic benefits are expected from
s e or- disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the derecopniton of the asset
{caleulated 25 the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount .of the asset) is-included in the income: statement when the asset is
derecopnised.

The assets” residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation are reviewed
at each finance year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

when each major inspection s performed, its cost 7 recognized in the carmying
amount of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets: (consisting of computer software) are measuored on initial recognition
at cost. Follewing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated  amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangible assets are not capitalized and expenditure is charged against
surplusfdeficit in which the expenditure isincurred

The useful bives of intangible assets are assessed 1o be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amartized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
wheneyer there is an mﬁf:at‘im that the intangible assets may be impaired, the
expected useful life s apmxumatel.y 10 years. The amortization period and the

-amortization methed for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at each finantjal

year-end. Changes in the expected wseful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of fulure ecenpmic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the
amartization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assebs is recognized in the
statement of financial performance. Gaing or losses arising frém the derecognition of
an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the et disposal procesds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recopmized in surplus/deficit when the
asset is derecognized. .

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the BMH has a present legal or constrictive obligation
a5 a resolt of past events, for which it 5 probable that an cutflow of economic
benefits will be reguired to-settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.
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Where the BMH expacts same or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an'insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate assel but
anly when the reimbursement s virtially certain. The éspense relating to any
provision &5 presented in the Statement of  Financial Performance net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provigsions
are discounted using a-current pre-tax rate that reflects, where approgriate, the risks
specific to the Hability, Whers discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised a3 a firande cost,

Events after the reporting period
Events dfter the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that
eccur between the end of the reporting perod and the date when the financial

stalements are authorized for issoe. Twa types of events can be identified:

1. These that provide evidence of conditfons that existed at the reéparting period
(adjusting pvents after the reporting perod.

-2, These that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period

(non-adjusting évents alter the reporting period).
2.6 Value Added Tax

Revenues; expenses and. assets are recoonised net of the amount of value-added tax

= Where the vatue-added tax incorred on 8 purchase of assets or senices i not
recoverable: fram the taxation authority, in which case the valuesadded fax i
re::n-gnfsec! as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item
as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value-added tax
included, The net amount of value-added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statemenrt of
financial position.

1.7 Income Taxes

Heing ‘a public institution that s dot foe peafit, the Benjamin Mkaps Hespital &
exempted from tax on its surplus.

2.8 Employees Benefit

Employee benefits are recognised-on the accrual basis,
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Short-term h‘eheﬁu_

Emplayes benefits include salaries; pensions, annuat leave and other related -
emplayment costs. Tha.estimated monetary I:Ial:ﬂhty for emplovees accrued allowances
and ather entitlements at the regorting date is recognized as an expense,

Post-Employment Benefit

BMH anid 1t employess contribute to the Public Service Social Security Fund (PSSSF) a
statutery defined contribution plan, under ‘the PSSSF Act. The organization's
contributions to the defined centribution scheme are charged to the statement of
financial performance in the year in which they relate.

Other Long-Term Benefits.

Employce entitiements to gratuity and long service awards are rocognized when they
accrue to employees. A provision s made for the estimated hability: for such
entitiements as a result of services rendered by employees up te the reporting date.

FUTURE CHANGES I[N ACCOUNTING POLICIES

standards ssued but nat yet effective up to the date of issuance and sbme
amendiments thersan which might have an impact on the entity's financial statements
arer listed betow. This listing of standards issued 45 those that the entity reascnably
EXpects o have an impact on disclosures, financial pesition or performance when
applicd at a future date. The entity intends to adopt these standards when they
hecoms effective.

1) IPSAS 41- Financial Instruments: - This standard i effective for annual
financial statements covering periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, The
entityis currently assessing the impact of the standard. '

2}

3)  IPSAS 42 Spcial Benefits: - This standard 15 effective for annual financiat
statements covering periods. beginning on -or after Janusry 1, 2023: The entity is
currently @ssessing the impact of the standard,

10.0 EXCHANGE RATES

Al monetary amaunts in the financial statements are expressed in Tanzania 'Shil.lmgﬁ,

the legal terder showing as: TZS. The Tanzania shilling closing rate [The Bank of
Tanzania middle rate) for miajor l:urr_e'm_:_.:.j_ Wida:

 Currency 30 June 2024
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[United States Dallar 282693 1
TEH — e
Risk Managerment

The:gevernment s subject to several financial risks which arise as a résult of its debt
portfalios, investment funds and transactions with foreizgn and domestic:sugpliers, and
is responsible for ensuring appropriate rsk management strategies and pelicies are in
place within any maridate provided by legislation.

Interast Rate Risk

Interest rate Risk refers to the risk of loss due to-adverse mevement in intersst rate.
In gereral inderest rate risk is managed strategically by Issuing a mix of fixed and
floating-rate debt.

(@) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers ta the risk of a loss due to the non-performance by counterparties 1o
discharge an obligation. Financial instcumients that subject

The Ministry th Credit Rish dncludes bank balances; receivables, advances; and
imviestmeants, ' '
The entities within:the Ministry reporting entity manage their expsure te ersdit risk
by

Maintaiming credit exposure only with highly rated institutions, for which the
prabability of default s low. The creditworthiness of counterparties s tha:-

1. Continucusly mamitared,
2. Ensuring diversification of credit exposure by limiting the skposure to BTy one
financial institution,

{c) Foreign exchange risk

Fareign exchange risk refers fo the risk of (oss due to adverse movements in forefan
exchange rates. The ranee of instruments currently being used to minimize the
siriskry s exposure to forefon exchange risk-includes i::ﬂﬂ"emj-_.r anid interest rate swaps,
foreigh-exchange contracts and futures contracts.

{d) Liguidity risk
Liguldity, risk: refersito the less due o the:lack of liguidity preventing guick or cost-
effective liquidation of preducts, positions or portfolios. Liguidity risk is mianaged on
an individhial  entity basis, which genierally requires entities to bold: assets af
apprapriate quantity and guality to meet all their obligations as they fall due:
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11.00 DISCLOSURE NOTES

11.1  COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING CIRCULAR NO.3 OF 2023/2024
ADOPTION FOR IPSAS 41
IPSAS 41 (international Public Sector Accounting Standard 41) Is a standard developed
by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASS) to guide public
~sector entities in accounting for financial instruments: It was issued to replace the
previous guidance under [P5AS 29, a!:gmng more closely with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), particularly IFRS 9.

Key paints of IPSAS 41 adoption:

1. Gbjective: The standard aims to enbance the transparency and comparability
of financfal statements n the public sector, ensuring consistent treatment of
financial instruments like-loans, investments, and derivatives,

i Scope: IPSAS 41 applies: to all public sector entities, 1]'H;Iu|;l|ng ratipnal, regional,
and. \ocal governments, and their controiled entities. It covers the recagnition,

measurement; presentation, and disclesure of financial instruments;

i Main Chanaes:

I. Classification and Measurement: Financial instruments are classified
based on the entity's business model for managing them and the
contractual cash flow characteristics.

i, Impairment: A forward- [toking "expected credit loss™ moded replaces
the previous incarred loss: m-ﬁﬂr:!

fil, Hedge Accounting: IPSAS 41 mtm;_tu::eh.sﬂet_:il'ic provisions for hedge

-accobnting that align with IFRS 9.

4, Aduption: Governments and public sector entitles transitigning to IPSAS 41 has
updated their accounting systems and policies to-align with the rew rulgs, which
involves significant changeson how financial instruments.are recoenized and reported.
The adoption of IPSAS 41 strengthens the financial reporting of public sector entities,
promoting - better decision-making, accountability, and transparency in gr:wernment
firancial management,

T TR TS ST T TS st Qe TT T 11

S| BANMNAME B-H.LAHL‘EM‘ P | T B T CARRYING
AT JUNE 2023 [ VALUE |
=_ (EADY " =
A ] £ D= A A-D
1| VB COLLECTION | 246,477,801.13 0 L 5161 97050 | 74%,315,350:85 |
| | MMBEXPENDITURE | W16875, 109,598 | e 0.5 13,148 85730 _E_i*.?3,_?__1_§_._;1+_1_._¥:q_|
= = = | 18,310,798:80 | 845,042,122.53 |
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_Erm__gﬁq_rr[ﬁ'ﬁ'fﬁ?m#ﬂ&ﬁnfﬂ JUNE 2073 Ih'ﬁf.ii.l:iﬁ_'aﬁﬁ-lﬁx__ _”Sﬁ-iﬁi':?'ﬁﬁ__l_d f@i’ﬁi_[ﬁf'ﬁ_'
Gl BANK HANE BALANGE AS Fo LGD ECL T CARRMING
AT JUNE 2023 YALUE
{EAD) . -
A E i DEATBC AD
BALANCE A5
AT JUNE CARRYING
| S/HEY | BANK HAME 20Z4{EAD} () LGD ECL | VALUE i
& L c DeAtBUC] A
1 | MMB EXPENOITURE | 476,863 457,39 B2 0,98 | 10,138.230.08 | #46,724,728.31 |
10,138,229, 08 | 466,724 208,31
|
For the Previous year, 2023 25 =
oR ECL Eapanses TEneEEY |
- Prowrsian for: . N
cit ECL 18,390, 738,80
For the Financial year 024, & Decroase in the e =)
Provision of ECL ial ;
Lol Provision for " |
L EEL 8,172,559, 72 :
R _ECL Réversal BATA 55902 | |
] BALAMCE AS AT ;
ST | BANK HAME JUMNE 2073 {EAD) Bo LGD ECL CARRYING VALUE. |
A ] € D=A"EC A "_f
1 | NWB COLLECTION T AT BT 15 .47 097 | 5 181,920.50 241,315.880.85 |
2 | NMS EXPENDITURE | 616,875,109.98 0.62 099 | 13,148 B56.30 603, 776,241,568 |
3 = 18,310,785,80 | 845,042,122.33 |
| -
BALANCE A5 AT |
SEND | BANK MAME JUNE 2034(EADY Fp LGP ECL. CARRYING VALUE | '
4 B g B=AYE*C AD i
2 | rwd EXPENDITURE 476,862, 25738 L0 098 | 10,138,7729.08 “ﬂ?-??-ﬂ?—ﬂ—’i‘il
10,138,275.06 | 466,724,205:31 |
|
1 ——cl e ——
|
BALANCE AT ) 7,500,000,00
BANK LESS «
FROGABILITY TERD
AT DEFAULT | PD ) _
I'HMAW : 7.500,000.00
BANK, ABOVE > '
e e B ] = — e
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THE UNITED REFPUBEIC OF FAMIANIA

~ EXPECTED CRECIT LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2023 AND JUNE B024{CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS) |
SPH BANK HAME BALANCE AS P LGD EGL CARRYING,
AT JUHE 2023 i “WALUE ]
= (EAD)
. A B C D=A*R=C AiD
PROBABILITY | CALCULATION G
ATBEFSULT | PO P -
B T
LGD | AT &Y POINT 1:00 f‘
BiAreK FAmE Bo
oo Z,16%
CROR. 3 g
TrB 6
EXPECTER LREBIT LOS5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2023 AHD JUNE
Z024(RECEIVABLES)
Buckets: Lioss Rates Loss Rates EAD
G430 Doy 0,061500347 0, 006250033 0.056250312 2,166,342, 757,00 |
60 Days 006777000 0, AT P 0,06 1001462 2,417, 220,541.00
£1-90 Days (L0741R6354 007448635  O.08A7677IG 1,086,691 118,00
91-120 Bayy 0.0877508%7 LG0T 0078975806 | 3,336,670,266.00
| 127150 bays 0. 124875676 0012487502 0.112387515 1,705 443 25050
151180 Dy 0. 157373618 0. BI57ITI6R 2 141626256 435,538, 126.00
181-240 Days: £.557383971 0055236357 O ATTE45574 IR A43,330.00
| 211-Z40Days 0230635063 B3R 0. 207571556 AC0.913,971,00
24270 Days 0.zmiEs4se Q.O70AN | 023221097 299,751,691,
274300 Days 4.1 0.0 .2 49, 406,045.00
30T 350 Days S (.0 7 A, 708, 605,06
331-365 Days 2.2 i B2 T18:250.00
Aberer 365 Days 1 At 1] 80665, 000:00
TOTAL | 12,631, 212,642.00.
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Average |Loss Rate

Lo v e LELE ]

Tha Bspeced crodlt Ligs rate Tar the year saded Jife 2003 from ECL Massl

,399,930,401.95

TG A0 98

incraase |n ECL 205.487,649.25
023724

Buckets Loss Rates: | EAD | EeL

(30 Days 0,062500347 o9 Y Fen00 | 131,218.714.26

3160 Hays. D.067779402 | 2.338.448,847.20 156,498,585.32
6190 Days. 0.074186354 | 2,764,850, 411.00 160,602,359, 32
G110 Bays 0087750897 454,565, 93600 39,B8E,568.81

121-150 Days 0.1 2ABTSO1S 524,609,675.00 65,510.641.72

151- 180 Days 0157373618 373,461, 645.00 58,773.013.39

181210 Days 0,552 383971 335,056,016.00 185,079, 572,50 |
B 240Dy 0230635063 | 45486671700 | 104,508,098.49
#41-270 Days 0.280234356 | 403,342 ,372.00 1153,035.980.72

271300 Days. g2 350,454, 03300 70,090, 80660
“30-330 Days 0.2 480,711, 646.00 | O 142, 379,29

331-385 Days 0.2 387,75%, 104,00 77.5950,420,80
I_ﬁhﬂ 363 Days 1 1,404,115, 380.00 1,404,113,380.00

|11, 771,702,018.20

| 2,665,412,051.23 |

The expacted credit loss rate for the year ended June 2023 frem ECL Model
d022023
Incredse in ECL
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Thie effect of the adr.:lptmn of |PSAS 41 has been described in the fallowing category of
the Financial Statements as-shown on the futlnmrrg tabular below

i. Statement of Financial Position

i - The prior year's figure l
Comparative ]
Comporients figure 2022/23 Agﬁfm“;n’:‘%mm pilictl
A B — C={A-B)
Cash and'Cash Equivalents | 1,908,989 80 1,927.300,590 | (18.310,789)
Receivables 10,231,287,690 12,631,213,692 | {2,399,930,402)
fecaniated Surpluses. 11| (5, 130 s 935) (30,720,304,544) | (2,418,241,131)
1]:'ash and Cash Equivalents 2023724 202213
| Commiercial Own scurce revaniie U6, 520,912.70, 246,477 B0t 15
Deposic Cati Aecount 128,467 E51.52 RS-
| Bevelopment Expenditure Cash Account 16,030,000.00
Imprest Cash Accaunt 2287641114 =
Dwn souree Collectlon Acodunt - TPB I;.,IE&,‘_‘}ED_.DB‘__1 ;
| Owen satirce Development Bxperiditure 56,943, 308, 06 N
Oven'solrce Recurrent Expenditure GF B9.320,176,00°| 616,575,109, w
| Own source Revenue Collection 2,963, ﬁm B58.02 1,662,947 678,93
| Provision for ECL [Cash) 10,135, 779.08 | -18,310, 7680
| Recurrent Expeaditure Cash Azcount J48,535,752.70 | - -
Unapplied Cash Account 249,348 81709 inian .
3,957,652,109.75 | 1,908,989,801.26 |
Details ) 2023124 l 2022123
125 i
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the peniod 3,967 76083600 | 1,977.300,501.00
The changes have been aflected by ECL ' -10,738.228 85 -18,319,789.74
Tatal | 3,957,662,109.15 |  1,508,969,601.26
For the Previous year 2023 TZS
DR ECL Expenses’ 18,310,788,80
£h Pravision for ECL - Ig&f{l ;gs_,a_:_;
Expocted Cradit Loss BT 2083423 ]
| Expected Cradit Loss 265, 481,649.25 | 2,418,241,150.78 |
265,481,649.75 2.418,241,190.78 ) ﬂ
[Receivables T i 0zeles |
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o e D

Provision far Fxpected Crodit Loss - Shart Term

-1,665,417.051,23

-2:399,930,501.98 |

e s T T i LS ok R i LY L S TR

Receivabls (GERG)

11,771, 702,018,

17,631,213,092.00 |

n Ebatamqnt of Financial Performance Notes 54

106,789,866 51 10,231, 762,690.00

Comparative | Prior year's figure Audited in Differ
| Companints figura 2023/2% | flnaneial statement 2021/72 S o
A B Cw{h-B) |
_iﬂmrpuﬁmﬂ  Deficit for the -t11.5'!'§,-¢?::l,5m'1 r (3.181,179.310} | (2,418,241,197)
54 - Expected Credit Loss 2023124 - 7022/22
Expected Eradit Lass "1’!55;4151,'9_55-9-15 248741, 1":‘[] ?H |
63.481,649.25 2 41& 241,190,78 |
fii. Cash Flow Statement
] Comparative | Prior year's figure Audited in Difference
| Compongnts figure 2022/23 | financial statement 2021/22 Ty
A B o C={A-B}
Revense from  Exchange o0 T : : S
Rl ANEE | 45008, 767,394 Y, 097072, 1 ;m.-am.nn;_|
!:a,;i'r ang Cash equivalent g - — 1
a}_ the El'l?l'li.lrf.ﬁl? Fe'ﬂﬂ'ﬂ 1 .W&?E?.ﬂﬂﬂ ! 1-.-'?.2?.313‘&59‘& [13,315.?39:3 |
— =
v, Statement of Changes in Equity
Comparative Fﬂur yaar'; figure Audited ln CifForerici
Components figure 2022/23 | financial statement 202223 | EE
Oy A B Ta (A= ﬂ:l_
Accumulated Surpluses [ e

DrefiTits

{33,138, 545,735}

(30,720,304:544) | RAB1,191) |

| 54 - Expected Credit Loss |

LRI EA

202223 1

Expected Cradit Loss

T6%, 481,649,215

498,241 190.78

- I67,481,64%.15

2.418,241,190.78

EC_l:l_ntH:;rI_;!r*-_u;ij'.’; .ﬁ-l.f&}é{_ﬂ_'?;aEHEEEll
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a2} Land

The value of land could not be ascertained as at the date of preéparation of these
Financial Statements; the value of land has been reporied under the University of
Bodoma (UDOM) Financial Statements. The Asset will be included in subsegoent

Financial Statements of subsequent periods. The Land acquired by BMH with the value
of TZS5 €7,455,600, Plot number 74 plots D with S0M 12,046 located at lyumbu area as

shown on RE: Survey Plan no. 9170 Dodoma City Council. Separation of Land and

Building as per requirement in Section 74 of IPSAS 17 is in the process and the
management has committed resources to ensure compliance with IP5ASS and ather
Directive, But the risk and rewards/economic benefits of the use of land flew to
Benjamin Mkapa Hospital.

(b)  Governing Board
The Board of Trustees of Benjamin Mkapa Hospital is composed of eight (B) members.
Apart from the Hospital's Executive Director, all other members are pon-executives,

{c) Rejected Claims-Bad Debts

The-actual NHIF Rejected claims during the year was TZS-4,394,198,027.66 comnpared
te T25 3,266,408,603.00 of last financial year, initially, some amaunts of the rejected
claims were treated as Recefvables because we filled the appeal to NHIF for payment
nf the

(d) Intangible Assets

The intangible assets amounting to TZS 57,973,400.00 for the assots mianagement
system for Benjamin Mkapa Hospital i still a work in orogress simply becawse the
supplier has net yet completed nstallation and training for staff that are going to
gaerate the cystem.

The: haspital purchased a system for maintaining s assets i 2021 to facilitate the
recording of all hospital assets, the Supplier completed all procedures far fnstalling
the said system but immediately after installation and training to some of BMH staff
the Goversment through the Ministry of Finance circular number 2 for the financial:
year 2000722, ectablished a syStem for maintaining Governmeént assets kndwn as
GAMIS and instructed all government institutions to use the government system so the
hospital joined the system and started using it and abandoned the one bought by the
haspital after several copsultations corsidering the importance of these systems,
Management has decided fo use both systems concurrently, so starting from this
financial year 2023/24, all systems will be connected and used together. But this
system will be enabled to perform ather functions a5 a reed arises, ' '

:Cﬂnl;mller and Audimr General '
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“Subventign Capltal

THE UHITED REFUBLIC OF TANZAHLA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH

T1370000 - BERJAMIN MICAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

NOTES TO THE FIJ';:I.I'LHEML PERFORMANCE FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

2023704

16 - Revenue Grants TZ5
Fervenue Grants - Mon-Monetary 79,015, 815.00

879,015,815.00
17 - Revenue from Exchange Transactions _
Laboratony Charges 2,902,831,608.00
Revenue from Medical amd Dentat Charges Vo 625, 377, 492,00
Genaral Surgery 150, 060,008.00

13,465, 171,587.65
&3, T30, B 00
5, 000, 600,00

Revenue from Exchange Transackions Non-Monctary
Reverse from Rent of Government - Quarters.

Rent fram Conference Facilities

Revenue from Surgical Services

Revenue from Consultancy Fees. 202 ,632,150.00
o 36,863,518,622,75

Z4 - Fair value Gains'on Assets and Liahilities
Reversal'of provision far dmpairment of Recaivables [EC‘L:I . e 2 b

B, 172,559.72

31 = Other Revenue

Misczllaneous Income T, 313, 500,00
Sale of Vaccines and Diagnostic Servicos 1,380,000,00
71,693,500.00

32 - Subvention frem other Government entities
Government Grant-Personal Emolument

_ 1,708, 759,440, 51
Subrvention Development Foreign

Sibeention Dther Charges 3067, 609 64924

17,474,479,830.16
34 - Wages, Salaries and Employee Benefits ' '
Acting Allowance
Casial Labour Expentes: _ .
Casual Labotrers Jﬂ,ﬁmrmﬂrﬁ
Civil Servants 12,698,710, 700.25
Elactricity 60,472.126.73
Extra Doty 1,162,453,691.0C
Food amd Befrestment b, 588 904,00

1261, 608, 566,05
233.219,999.00
166,152.820.00

Foreigh Service Allowance
Furimiture Expitisas
Housing Aliowance Discrationary Expenses

Leave Travel 131,954, 166,00
Medical and Dentat Refunds A 148 ETE.O0
Moving Expenges 27,384,800.00

Bn Call Allowance 304, 940.000.03
kit Allowahce

Sitting Allowance 170, 352.000.00

Controlier and Auditor General

2,888, 575, 783.60

12,698,710, 70045

2022733
TZ5.
3,153,247, 278,00
3,153,247, 278,00

3,834,273, 830,65
14, 285, 083,331.02
15, 27000000
16,493,493 71000
524,085,000,00
19,720.000.00
1,044,965,650.00
2,870,000.00

36, 18%, 761,002,537

142500000
1,425, 000,00

10, 690, 638, 350 04
7,895,874, 880.12
59, 140, 796.00
1,860, 607337 78
15,506,721,352. 88

2,036,932:00.
945, D45, 407,11
1,066, 772,921.09
10,871,156, 342.00
154, 355, 809,48
(97,657, 346,50
S, 798, 5000
267 9599, 885.93
T EATETRShA
B6;230,006.00
94,085, 618.24

&, 13, 006,00
19,284, 80000
258,830.000.0C
654,486, 00
76,200.519.06
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THE UNITED REPLBLIC DF TANTANIA
MIMISTRY BF HEALTH

T1370000 - BENJAMIN MEKAPA HOSPITAL {BMH )

Special Allowance
Subsisteace Allowance
Telephomne

Uriiform Allowance

35 - Use of Goods and Service

Arcommodation Training - Domestic

Advertising and publication

Advertiging and Publication - Communication & Infarmation
Afr Travel Tickats Travel - [n-Countiy

Air Travel Tichets Travel Out Of Country

Archive Materials

Begl Shewtsand Linen

Books, Reference-and Pariodicals
Communkation Nebwark Servizes

Comiputer Software - Use, of goods and Services
Computer Supplles and Accessories

Cenference Facilities

“Consumable Medical Supplies

Dental Supplies

Fhesed

Drugs-and Medicines

e Training Materials

Educational Radio and TV broadeasting. programming
EI:.c_u:ltr-mc-ll.j.I LeHithes: Eupptl‘:e': ATl SErviCes
tnteriainment - I'Iuspllah‘l'y ‘Su,':l[_ihes. And Services
Exhibitian, Festivals and Celehrations

Food anid Refreshments

Furiization Expeses

Gifts.and Prizes

Ground Transport (Bus, Train, Water)

Ground travel {bus, rallway tasi, stc)Travel - -country
Ground travet (bus, raibway taxi, etcjTravel Out OF the
Counlry

Huospital Suppliss

Internet and Email connedtions

Laboratory Suppties

Medical Gases and Chemicals

Mabile Charges '

News Services Fees

‘Nen Cash Expenditure-Use of Goods and Services.
Oifice Consamables (papers, pencils, pens and stationaries)
Duitstrcing Costs (includes ;:le.:ntng and aanurlty EBrYines)
Per Mg - Domestic

Per Diem - Foreign

Patrod

Fost Mortem Expenses.

Gongrolier and Auditor Gereral

B, 705,125,597 14
85, 328, 260000

75,040,000.00

30, 360, 00000

21,985,635,304.70

2,57%,000.00

2, 755,244,398

145,307 462.58
61,444 515,20

75,610, 800-00
466,000.00

525, 00000
4,828,123.26
10,047,000,00
80,999,320.00

71, 785,000,000
3,149,333, 613,05
o, 159, 000,00
499,911, 70585
9,347 369,708,858
10,171, 700.80
23,616,735.00
1,000, 143,377, 91
24,000, 000,00
112,775, 819.00
187, 353000, 0
1.959,000.00
8,000, 000,60

68,057,259.36
4,381,188.00

234,680,915.24
7,477,000.06
323,889,252.62
10,500,000.00
7.978,173,67
7,198,000.00
462,567, 350.00
273,600,076.01
519,491,945,09
999, 795,292.73
101, 218,851.00

33,000,660.00

5,119,997 198.40
317,541 ,200.60
9,543, 340,38
11,408, 440,00

20,048,200,755.05

2%,733,300.00

102;037, 10020
18,756,792.00
94, 796, 527.00

9,936, 000,00

17,344,000.00

6, 260,000,070
25,625, 000.00
65,301 469,77

4, 200,900.00
4,579, 578,532 76
55, 490,006.00
375,525, 565.91
B, 693, 516,091.59
44019 78000
-6,685,000.00
832,108,387, 41
10, 500,000.00
109, 447, 800.00
137,054, 380,00
4,531 000.00

4, 400,000.00
5,35%,400.00°
42,013,373.00

52, 128,400.60
24,303, 735.00
931,201,921,17
93,530, 300,30
3, 246,805.1%
8,713,000.90

158,087,527.55
4309 088, 200,66
529 634, 698,00
117,195, 108,60
3806000
16,500,000, 00
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THE UKITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH

TH370000 - BENJAMIN MKAPA HOSFITAL (BMH)

Posts and Telegraphs

Printing and Pholacopying Costs

Protective Clothing, footwear and gear
Pulrlicity

Rent of Private vehicles :

Research and Dissertation Traming - Domestic
Sprcial-Unifarms and Clothing

Specialised Medical Supplios

Subscriptidn Faes

TapEi.aFih'nsc, and Materiats (split)

Tetephone Charges (Land Lines)

Training Adlowanoes

Training Materisls

Tuition Feps Training - Dormestic

Tulthon Fees Training - Forelgn

Uniforms -Clathing, Bedding, Footwear and Services
Lipkeep Allowances

Visa Apnlication Fees

Water and Waste Disposal (Garbiaga)

Water Charges

36 - Maintenance Expenses

A eonditioners”

Lement, Bricks and Building Mataials

Compurers, printers, scanners, and other computer-related
efquipment

CT-5can Equipment

Birect{abour (contriveted or casual hire) - Buitdings:

Direct labour {cantracted o casual hire) - Roads and Eriijgtes.

Electrical and Other Cabling Materials - Buildings
Fax machings and ather small office eguipment
Fire Protoction Equipment '
Mechanical, elecirical, and eledtronic spare parts
Madical and Laboratory equipmant

Maotor Mebicles-and Water Craft

MBI Eeuipment

Al -grease; and other chemical materials

Cutseures malnlenance contract services. - Bulldings:
Outsource malnlenance contract services - Machinery,
Eguipment-and Plant

Outsoirce mainienance contract services - Office Equipment
and &ppliances

Dutsource matntenance contract services - Water and
Eleckricity lnstallationyg

Paint and Weather Protection Coatings

Phbtocopiers

Plumbing Supplies and Fixtures.

Small tools and implermants.- Buildings
Telephones and Office PABX systems

Controlier and Auditar Goreral

3,393,600.00
7000, 000,00

19,040,413.09
18, 0061, 000. (0
8,808, 000.00
161,089, 510,00
B, 390, 000,00
1,718,000.00
21,568,998.43
55,443,530.00
B.381,655.12
163,164, 717.94
16,000,000, 00
17, 880,000,600
3,000,000.00
313,750,090

5, 900,000,00
240,438,570.88
18,632,618,344. 88

11,555, 000.00"

49,095,721.00
13,504, 000,00

262,000, 600,00
1,795,878,922.37
6, 665, 000. 00
30,472,000.60
1,536,000.00

B1,838,191.93
&b8,532,375.80
128,185, 728.07
479,254, 708,57
11%,062,000.00

1,525:468,722.0%
161,852, 521,40

217 4ET1,500.00

2,603,328.00
8,325,200.00
61,475,176.04
15,298,982.00
1.008,000.00

60,60
&,240,000.00

495 000,00

23, 248, 151.00
30,745,400.00
31,871,864, 65
478,112, 710:00

324713989
90,842, 719,15
44,546, 570.00
10,870, 000.00

127,354,95%-00
4,676, 000.00
4,018, 380,90

247, 751,837.27
17,011,446, 487.61

34, 564,000, 00
59,893,297.18
10,264, 010,00

396,307 576.05
13,438,000.60

19, 361, 844.00
A2, 000.00
B74,000.00

53,044, 104.81

360,146, 799, 58

A1,860,000.00
145 668878, 73
2,748,043,051.95

1,586,457,063.51
1,507,000.00
1487 00, U

T26,278,196.00
763,236,617, 72
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTEY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJAMIN MEAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

TV sets and Radios

Twres and Batteriss
Ultra-Saugd Equigrment
Waad and Timber Suppliss
X-Ray Equipment

44~ Impairrment of Receivables _
mpairment of Receivable-Rejected claims by NHIF

52 - Other Expenss
Audit-Fost Expenses

Rurial Expenses

consultanty fens

Counting Maching servige charge
Diredtor's Fee

Specizlized Equipmant and Supplies:
Transporis posts - other expenses

54 - Expected Credic Logs

Expected Credit Loss

56 - Sacial Benafits

Benefits for PLHA -Employee:

Medical Exemnption-Special Group (Non-monetary)

&0 - Other Transfers

Cantribltion ta CF (15%)

61 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Commearcial Dwn source revenye
Deposit Cash Accaunt

Development Expenditure Caah Adcount
Imprast Cash Account

Dwn source Goltection Account - TPE
Orwini sourcs Develepment Expenditure
Ewn seurce Recurrent Expenditure GF
e source, Bevenue Collettion
Provision for ECL (Cash)

Recurrent Expenditure Cash Account
Unapplied Cash Account

67 - Recelvalles
Provision for Expected Credit Loss - Short-Tarm
Riscelvahie (GERG) o

&9 - Prepayments

Advance Payment
Prepayments Assets - Manetary

Contralier and Auditor General

B39,755.94
53,9&3,44?.3T
B.518.432.55
320,400;00
230,411,382.00
5,935,799,492.13

4,394,398,027 .66
4,394,398 01765

25,000,000.00

45, 684,000.00
142,518,900.00

75,075.000.00

3,236,773,834.08
33,000,000.00

1,558,051, 734.08

265,481, 649,75
165,481,649 75

4,089, 99600
459,277, 447.00
463,367,443.00

15.000,000.00
15.000,000.00

96 5207912, 70
128,467,852 52
10,0350, 000.00
2767641114
2,366,450.00
56,943,308, 06
E9,320,176.00
251,960, 658.02
-10,138,229.08
348,535, 752,70
249,348 817.09
3,957,652,109.15

-2.665.417,051.23

11,771,702, 018.04
9,106,289,966.81

1470, 000,00
20,306 200000

7,000,000.00
294,053, 382,60
5.3 77T, TR 63

3,266,408, 60200
3,266,408, 603,00

6, S 00, (3D
3771573500
33, 000:000,00
48, 500,000.00
IFTAI0 1IR3

409,372,863.38

2,418,241 190,78
E 418241 190,738

7,600,000,00
595,871,515.00
5%8.471,515.00

46 477,801 15

416,875,109.54
1,063:947 67593
18310 FBE.BD

1,908,989, 801,26

-2,3945,930,401.54
12631, 213,097 .00
10,231, F82,690,02

1,448 789 6395
A12,052.830.89
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANTAMIA

MINISTREY OF HEALTH

TraT0000 - BENJAMIM MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

0 Inventaries
Building Materials
Conswmanlos

Fuel

Laboratory equipment
Medical Supplies
Spaie parts and tyres

89 - Payables and Accruals
Sapplies of geods and serviced

93 Hevenue Granls

Development Deferced hicome Addition
Recurent Deferred lncdme Addition
Recipt

'5"_*'1 - Deposits
Deposit- General
Unapplied Deposit Account Addition

iCantrofler and Auditar General

Oh5 . 801,942 .60
2.379,B41,394. 69

3,335,643,337,29
10,437, 136,986, 43
10,431,136,986,43

10,830, (0.0
348;535,752.81
358,565, 752,81

286,73 435.68.

2453, 348,817.09

535,471,252, 77

1,870,342 463,84
2,445, 000,50

54,683 421.03
33,040, 00000

B.5E0, 930,50
708, 749,151.53

4 343072 353,00

4,343,072, 252.00
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-t viin THE UNMITED REPUBLIC OF TANTANIA

MINISTRY OF HEALTH

T 370000 - BENJAMIN MEAFPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO SURPLUSI{REFICIT)
FOR-THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUKE 2024

Sl.&'plus.f [:"Eﬁ:it. for the Period
foafa b {Lﬂﬁ:ﬁ tan-Cash ibem

Depreciation of F'mwmr, Plant and Eqmpment

Expected Credit Loss-impairmesnt

Fair value Galns. o Assets and Liahillties
Prowviseori for ECL (Cash)

Impalrment. of Receivables

s of Goods and Eﬁﬂdceiﬁﬁﬁb}
Unappiied Fayments

s of Goodsand Service

Add/ [Less) Chanpein Warking Capital
Beferred Incoma

Inventories

wther Receiot

Payabites and Accroals

Frepayments

Receivahles

Mzt Cagh Flow fram Operating Activities

Controller and Auditor General

180572, 187,169, 21

265,481 64900
B.172,559.71
10,138, 229.08
-4,394 358,007 86
2,780,484, 857 .96

921,844, 805. 00,

358,565, 751.00

-1,126,893,5686.00

h33,471 151 77
4,088, 064, 734 43

1,870,348 463.42

1,124,992, 713,21
6472, 450,255,94

14,148, 715,500 66

-11,599, 421, 500,58

16,984, 156,009.40
1,418,241,151.00
=4, 2ok 40860300

HL BB 61907
1,500,234, 540.00
353,357 663,05
7,066,410, 09.00

2,004,517 66700
-5, 922,603, 160,00

5,184,102,441, 88
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THE UNITED REPUBLIC OF TANTANIA
MIMISTEY OF HEALTH
T1370000 - BENJAMIN MKARA HOSP|TAL (BMH)

IECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMDUMNTS AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i “Fin ' investing "

desriptian Operating ancing n'-felsl:mg_ Tbti!i F

(TZS) (TZS) {TI5) (TZ5)
Actual amount (BUgEL & 45,150,546, 302.50 4,431,960, 508,00 53, 5B, 506,515, 50
“chinl)
T ——— = i
ntity differences o o
Actual amount fincash | 46,150,544,302.56 4431 ,960,508.00 50,582, 506,810.50
Towr) |

. .
Accounting Officer

bAfuri wa Uthasibu Serikaling { MUSE]

Cantraller and Auditor General

11]02/2025

Date
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THE UHITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH

T1370000 - BEMJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

NGTES FOR CASHFLOWS

= Revenue from’ Exchange Transactions
Gorral Surgery
Labbratory Charges

‘Bevenue from Medical and Dendal

Charges _
Revenue from Rent of Goverment

Duirbers

Rent from Cunfersnce Facitities
Revienue from Exchange Transaciions
Revenue From Surglcal Services
Revenue from Consullancy Fees
Revenue

AddiLess (Change in Working Capital)
Receivable (GERG)

Regeipt

31 - Dt Resiemes

Miscallamenus Tncame

Sale of Vaccines and Diagnostic Services
Reventes

37 - Subvention from dther Goverament
entities.

Gavermnnrent Grant Personal Emolument
Subventicn @ther-Charges

Fubvention Capital

_:'ia.ﬂwmf_.'rf.:rp Devetopment: Forelan
Revenus

AddfLrss [Change in Working Capital)
Reyenie Grants Non Mometany '

Eeeiint

24 - Wagas, Salaries snd Employes
Eoriefits.

Acting Alowance

tasual Labour Expensss

Lesual Lahourers

Controlior and Auditor Genoeal

202324
TS

150,000:000.00
2,902,831 608,00

16,422 745 347,00

623,730, 000. 01
5.000,300.00

12,647,735,315.05
. H0D,632,150,00
35,843,250, 199,65

A, 124,992,725
1,124,992, 7232

o I B R T e
70,343, 500,00

1,380, 000.00
74,693,500.00

12,698,710, 700:45
3,067,009, 649,20
1,708, 759.480,51

17.474,479, 830,75

7. 474,479,830.16

360000000

2022423
TZ5

15,270,600.00
3,854,773, 830,65

14,285,081,331.92

624,085, 0000
19.740;000.00
13,853, 477,130.08
1,004, 965 65000
2.B70.000.00
33,549, 744 547165

-3.822 A7 TSR
A5TL.6TE TRE.2T

30,027,072,184.38

1,425, 000.00
t r‘!‘iﬁ: m'ﬂﬂ

107,650,638, 350.00
1, R0 807 332. 76
2855834, 88017

54 140, 790.00

15,506,121,352 88

3,153, 247 27800
3,953,247,278.00
12,357 ,974,074.88

2,036;932 .00
S48, 045, 40771
1.066,772,921.09
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THE UNITED REFUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY-OF HEALTH

T1370000 - BEMJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

Civii Sefvants

Electricrty

Extra-Buty

Fosrl anied Refrashmient
Forelgn Service Allowange
Furniture Expensas

Housing Allowance Discretionary
Expenses

Leave Travel

Medical and Dental Refunds
Moving Expormes

O Lall Allowance

Qutfit Allowance

sitting Allewance

Spacial Allowance
Subsistance Allowance
TelppHone '

Uriform. Allgwane
Expentes

AdddiLess (Change in Working Capital)
Stalf Claim
Payment

35 - Use of Goods and Service
Accdmmcdation Training - Domestic
Advirtising and publication

Advertising and Publication -
Larmunitatfon B Ioformation

Mir Traviel Tickists Travei - In-Country
Afr Travel Tickets Travel Out OF Country
Archive Materials

Bed Sheets and Linen

Baoks, Relerence and Periodiceds
Communication Network Services
Campizter Software - Use of goods and
SETvices

Computer Supplies and Accessories
LConlerence Facilities

Consumable Medical Supplies.

Dental Sepplies.

Diesed

Dnugs and Medicings

& Trainjng Materials

Eduwsational Badle and TV Brosdeasting
programming.

Elsctsicity - Lilities Shpptes and
Servies

Ertertainmsng - Hospitality Supplics And
Services

Contralier and Auditor General

12,698, 710,700.25

GOCATR A2 1T

1,162,453,691.00

£,588,904.00°

130,008, 566.05
233,219,599.00

16,352, BH0. 040

131,558, 166,00
4,148,675.00
17 ,384,800.00
304,940,000.03

70,353.000.00
6,705,125, 507 14
A5,328, 260,00
75,080,000.00

30, 360, 000, 00
21,585 635,304.70

-157,654,584.00
21,827,980,710.70

1,575 000,00
7,755,244.98
145,307 462, 58

&1, 444:515.20
75,610,800.00
466,000.00

575 000.00
4,828,101 3.28
10,047,000, 00

0,999, 320.00

Y 2‘ ,Tﬁ[mq w
3.14%,333,813,05
24,159,000.00

A9 881, 70585
4,347,369, 708,88
10,171, 700.00
23616, 735,00

1006713143, 372

T4, 000,000.00

’I[I.E_}'1 o THE 34200
154,359,809, 48
697 657 34680

98, 798,300.00
267,495, BEE. 93
277.643,615.56

86.230,000,00

94,685,618, 24
6,212,000.00
19,384, 80000
258,830,000.00

T AR ATEDD
76,200,519.06
5,119,997, 198,40
37,543,200.00

9 541, 170,38
11,408, £40.00
20,048,200,755.05

180,557, 992,00
19,867,642,763.05

21,753, 300,00
102,037, 700,00

18,756,792 .00
od, 706, 52700

39.910,000.00
17,344, 000.00
B2k D00, B
25,425 000,007

B6,901 460 77
4,200,000.00:
4,575,578, 53274
53,4%0,000.00
375,525,568.91
6,693,616,001.59
4,019 780,00
£,695,000.90

B3Z. 108, 387,47

A0 500, 000, 0

_ ARIEG/IBAH 1202] 38



THE UMITED REPUBLIC OF TAMZAMIA
MIMISTEY OF HEALTH

T1370000 - BENJAMIN MKAPA HOSPITAL (BMH)

Travel Out OF the Country

Addd fess (Change in Waiking Capital)
Medhicat Supplisg '

ontreller and Auditor General

3,126,893, 986.00

Exhibition, Festivals.and Celebiration: 112,775,819.00 109,667,800,00
Food and Refreshments” 1E7,392,000.090 137,004, 360,00
Fumigation  Expenses 2,959,000.00 4,532, BO0.00
«Gifts-and Prizes B. 000, 500,00 4,400, 00 00
Cround Transport (Hus, Train, Water) _ e 2,351,400.00
Ground travel (bus, rafiway tasi, etc) 68.057,759.36 42,013.373,.00
Traved - la-country _ )
Greaund travel (bus, raibway taxi, ate) 4,381,188.00 -

Haspital Suppiies 101,818,972 48 52,128,400.00
Interaet and Email connectians 7477, 000.06 24,303,738.00
Laboratory Supoiies 423,889,751 .62 931,201,933.17
Medical Gasos and Chemicals 10, 500,000,400 53,530, 000.00
Mobile Charges 7.978,123.67 21,246 80512
Mawi Services Fees 7,198,000.00 B, 712.000.00
Non-Cash Expenditure: Use of Goeds and 467,567 158.00 =
LRrviees

Office Consumables {papers, pencils, 273, 600,078.01 158,047 527 55
pons and stationaries)

[tsaurcing Costs [includes cleaning and 519;491,940:00 459,08, 20044
FeCuUriby Servicos]

Per Dievn - Domestic 999, 796,292.73 529:634,498.00
Per [em - Foreign 101, Z18,B851.00 111,191, 108.00
Perrol” - 380, 35000
Post Mortem Expenses 33,000,000.00 10, 500, 00000
Posts and Tedepraphs ' - FT.000.00
Printing and Photocopying-Costs 3,393, 600.00 8,240,000.00
Protactive Clothing, footwear ard gesr 7,000, 00000 -
Publicity ) 495 00, B
Rent of Private vehicles 39,040, 413,09 23,248, 760,00
Research and Dissertation Training - 10,000, 600, 00 B0 245 00, DG
Domestic

Special Unifarms.and Clathing #,606,000.00 31,811 364,64
speciatised Medical Supplies 161,089,510.00 678,172, 710,00
Subscription Fees 6,390.000.00 -
Tapes; Films, and Materials (split) 1,738,000.00 124,139.89
Telephone Charges [Lapd Lises) 21,568,995.43 90, 842,219.1%
Trairing Allowances 56,493, 550.00 A4, 546, 570,00
Training Materials %, 381,655.12 10,820,000.00
Tuitlon Fees Training - Domestic 163,164, 717.94 427,354;959.00
Tuition Fees Training - Fareign 16,600, 00000 4.476,000.00
Uniforms -Clething, Bedding, Footwear 17,880,000.00 16,018,380.90
ang Services

Upkeep Allowances 3,000,000.00

Yisa Application Fess 313,750,008

Water and Waste Misposal (Garbage) 4 900, 000:00 -
Water Chargés A9, 438,570, 88 AT TV, 83727

16,599, 766,402, 10 17,071,446, 487,81

£ 3 P LR R L

 AR/CGBMH rz02, 7



THE UMITED REPUBLIC OF TANZANIA
MINISTRY OF HEALTH

TA13IT0000 - BENJAMIN MKAPA HOSFITAL (BMH)

medicat Supplies Opening
Sempdies:of poads and services: gddition

Fayment

if - Maintenance Expenseas

Afr corditioners

Lement, Bricks and Baflding Materials
Computers, printers, scanners, and other
computer-related soulpment

7 5ean Equipment-

Direct labaur (contracted or casual il'un::l
- Buildfings

Birect labour (contracted or casal hire)
- Reads and Bridges

Etectrical and Other Cabling Materials -
Buildings

Fax machines and other<mall office
equipiment

Fire Progection Equipment

Mechanical, slectrical, and clectronic
~Spare parts:

Medical and Laberatary equipment

Mator Vehicles and Water Crafe

MR Equiprmient

ity grease, and other chamical malerial
Qutsodrce maintenance contract services
- Buildings

Dutseuroe maintenance contiact services

« Machnery, Equipment’and  Plant

Cutsource maintenance contract services
- Office Equipment and Appipnces
Outsource maintenance contract services:
- Water and Electricity Installations
Paint.and Weather: Protection Coatings
Photocopiers:

Plumbing supplies and Fixtiges:

Small tools and implements - Buildings
Telephones and Office PABX systerms

T¥ sets and Radios

Tyres and Batferies

Ultra-Sound Equipment

Wand and Timber Supplics

¥ Ray Equipment

Expenses

A /L egs FChangein Warking Capital)
Supplies of gacds and services

Payment

Canitroller and Auditar General

<208, 749,351 .53
4738 267 Te9.87
1B17.123 135,50
16,782 643, 266,60

11,555, 000.00
43,095,¥11.00
13,504, 000.00

262,000, 000,00
1,795,878,922. 17

6,666, 000.00
30,472, 00000

1,536.000.00

81,238,797 03
648,532,375.96

128,185, F28.07

479,254,705.57
119, {62, 000,90
1,905, 468,722 .09

161,892,521.40

A7451,500.00

2,603,328.00
B,325,200.00
&1,475,176.04
15,298,982.00
1,000,000:00
339 755.94
53,981,447 31
B 518.412.00
920, 400,00
230,471, 382.00
5,935,799,491.58

-1,305, 387,996, 46
- T i 3m i 33?!99&;46
4,630, 411,495,142

1,886,052, 10400
5,807,471, 006.47
14,203,975,461,34

39,564,000.00
59,493, 797,38
20,264:010.00

396,307, 578.05
13,438,000.00

19,361 844,00
520,000.00

B7S,000,00
52,044, 104,81

360,146,799.58

41 Eﬁ{] RN
149,668, B78. 73

2, 248.043,051.95
1. 588 457,063, 81
T 07000000
T,443,000.00

126,378.196.00
263,236 67272

1,470.000.08
30,306,900.00

7,000,000.00
294,093, 382.60
5,713,777, 729,63

B30T, TL9:63
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43 - Sacial Benefitsy
Benalits for PLHA -Employes
Expenses '

52 - Other Expenses’

Aulit. Feey Exponses

Burial Expenses

considbancy fegs

Counting Machine service charge
MHrectors Fos

‘Specialized Eguipment and Supplies

Transporis Posts - other pxpenses
E-xpen-rﬁ

Add /Less {Change in Working Capitat)
Supphies of gends ang sorvices

Expiensos

I'iEI' - Cther Tr_nr'u'sfers-
Cantribution to OF
Expenses

Expienses”

94 - Deposit
Depasit Goneral

-Unapplied Deposit Accoumt Addition

Eavranive

F7 - hoguisition of Propierty, Plant and
Equipmient

Medical Equipnient Momstary
Computers and Photocopisrs Monetary
H-:_:;qitals’. chinics and hegith facilities
Monetary

rlouses, cottages and condids Monstary
Motor vehicles; Monctany

Office sguiment Marstany

Oifics Flmnitlire Monetary

Flant asnd MacFifnery.

Payrment

B3 RE?:EM:EHHE"

Bevelopment Deferred Income Additicn
Recurrent Deférrad Inn:u:-:-‘lf? Additkon
‘iﬁf.emt

ID-E Payment fer Wirk in Progress
Bulldings other than &Ne'lllngs Wip
Monekary
Payment

l:mtr-niler and Aumtus Ganm al

4,089, 99600
4,089,995.00

25,000 0400.00
45,654, 000,00
147 518,5900.00

75 075, 0. 00
3236, 773,E34.08

3%,060,000.00
3 E5E.051 73408

GBI 91000
2,890,420,6824.08

15, GO, D00, 10
15,600, 0O 00
15,000,000.00

CEBE 1L 435,68
249,348 B17.09
535.471,252,77

100450 08 57
255,405, 514,28
238,784 604, 30

. 5,032,500.00
43,276,313.00
P3R30-660,00
548,416, 485.45

T, 344, 858 35
7,700 562,117 85

18,030,000.00
148 535, 752.81
158 565, 753 &1

2,231,398 390,00
¥.131,398,390.00

7,600.000.00
2,600,000,00

16,740, 600,00
37,712, 73500
33,000,000.00
49,500, 000,40
27%,420,128.36

409,372, 863.36

409,372,863,.36

3,088,053,907,02
143 672 244,65
267,490,345 24
138, 71,974.41

311,733,931.10
209 53485800

4,358 807 254,42

3,789,887,518.00
3,289,882, 512.00

AR/CGHEMH 720z, BT
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Mo wa Ubasibu Serikating (MUSE)

Controtior aivd Aiditor General
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